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Sales revenue growth of 47%

Operating profit growth of 110%

Net profit growth of 111%

Fully-diluted EPS growth of 99%

R&D investment up 26%

Graphic Removed For Companies House Acknowledged as having won the
Enterprise Search Wars*

Rejoined the FTSE 100

Cash generated from operations of
$178.8m (2007: $83.1m)

Cash balance of $199.2 million at
year end and no net debt

Fully-diluted EPS of $0.61
(2007:$0.30)

* Source: Computer Business Review, December 2008

Autonomy’s Five Year Record

$°000 (except EPS) IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS

Revenue............ooirvvemunnannns 503,229 343,409 250,682 96,032 64,765
R&D Expenditure................. 78,410 62,341 51,680 21,923 14,256
Profit from Operations.......... 186,493 88,649 55,540 8,831 4,425
Profit Before Tax................. 185,707 91,447 56,319 12,628 7,683
Net Profit.........ccveeenennnnn. 131,749 62,465 39,085 8,950 6,106
Cash from Operations........... 178,783 83,108 46.948 17,721 7,006

Earnings per Share.............. 0.61 0.30 0.21 0.07 0.05
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Dear Autonomy Investor,

At the close of 2008 Autonomy stands amongst the proud few as having excelled in an
otherwise tumultuous year for the global economy and the software industry. It is in such times
that companies are proved, and | take great pleasure in presenting to you these results from an
exceptional year, in which Autonomy has not only stood the test, but risen above the tumult to
outperform expectations.

During the year the issues surrounding the collapse of global credit markets, counterparty
litigation and the incipient regulatory response have driven unprecedented demand for
Autonomy’s Meaning Based Computing technology. The year saw an extraordinary number of
multi-million dollar contracts signed, setting a new record with a single deal worth tens of
millions. Consequently, top line revenues, bottom line profits and EPS are all up significantly,
ahead of analyst consensus expectations, with strong organic growth.

Throughout 2008 we consolidated our industry leadership position, and were acknowledged by
independent observers as having “won the enterprise search wars” (Source: Computer
Business Review, December 2008). We also launched the industry's first information
governance platform for all types of information including audio and video, and witnessed
Autonomy's technology take centre stage in ancillary markets such as content leak prevention,
where every major player now builds its products on Autonomy, but in which Autonomy itself
does not compete. All of this culminated in a tremendously proud moment as we rejoined the
FTSE100.

Our growth and expansion has always been driven by the goal of establishing Autonomy as the
key infrastructure for the automated handling of all forms of unstructured information such as
text, audio and video. Following this unwavering goal we have achieved sales success and
proven our profitable business model, and have created a special software company which is
leading the market.

In 2008 we produced record results in every area, which is enabling us to build on our position.
In this letter let me recap for you our successes during 2008, as well as comment on some of
the trends we saw in our business during the year,

Financiai Results: In 2008 revenues, all key financial metrics soared from our previous records in 2007, driven by strong organic growth.
2008 financial achievements included:

Record revenues, up 47% from 2007 including strong organic growth
Record profit from operations (adjusted) at $207.5 million, up 91% from 2007
Record profit from operations (IFRS) up 110% from 2007

Record profit before tax (adjusted) at $208.9 million, up 84% from 2007
Record profit before tax (IFRS), up 103% from 2007

Record fully diluted EPS (adjusted) at $0.68, up 81% from 2007

Net profit (IFRS) up 111% from 2007

Gross margins (adjusted) at 91%

RA&D investment up 26% year-on-year

Positive cash flow generated by operations of $178.8 million (2007: $83.1 million), up 115%
Cash balance of $199.2 million at year end and no net debt

For adjusted results details and reconciliations see page 26.
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Accolades: Throughoul 2008 Autanomy was recognized by industry analysts as the unmalched market leader. Accolades included:

s Heralded as at the cutting edge of a new muiti-tillion dollar industry sector by Gartner's head of worldwide research
«  Winner of the LSE's 2008 techMARK company of the year award

e  Ranked as the faslest growing full-service EDD provider among the AM LAW 200

e  Awarded "Records Management Product of the Year” by Document Manager

Operations: We saw growth across the globe during the year, in vidtually every geographic and veriical market we serve. We continue to
win marquee cusiomers in emerging economies across Asia, Easlem Europe and Latin America. We also closed a record number of
large transactions in 2008 and the largest deals in the company's history.

Our strong R&D investment, including an increase in R&D spend in 2008 of 26% from 2007, is seeing clear retuns. 2008 saw significant
the continued development of industry-leading new technologies, with announcements about new technologies during the year including:

Autonomy ControlPoint, which brings comprehensive information govemance capabilities to Microsoft SharePoint
The inauguration of the world's largest managed data archive

The next generation of our Investigator and Early Case Assessment technology

A new Situational Awareness Web Portal to revolutionise the security control centre

Advanced Legal Hold with automated identification, notification, preservation and collection

After having cemented Autonomy's position as the industry leader during the year, including as the de facto standard in OEM markel,
Autonomy was recognized when it was recognized by Computer Business Review as having “won the enterprise search wars™ (Source:
Computer Business Review, December 2008) and by ComputerWeekly as dominating the search space.

The results of our investment can also be seen in the continued success of our vertical divisions, including: Autonomy ZANTAZ,
Autonomy's award-winning division specializing in compliance, litigation and risk technology; Avtonemy Virmge, a leading provider of
security and surveillance software and rich media content management software; and Autonomy etalk, a leading provider of nex-
generation contact center technology. Each of these divisions is founded on Autonomy's unique Intelligent Data Operating Layer, our core
infrastructure for aulomating the handling of all forms of unstructured and structured information.

The business value of Autonamy's infrastructure technology and its demonstrabte ROI are ultimately borne out by our average selling
price for meaning-based technologies, which remained stable throughout 2008 at approximately $393,000,

2008 activity was clearly reflected in Autonomy's share price, up 9% during 2008, one of only a small handful of FTSE100 companies to
show a gain in 2008, which followed a sise of 73% in 2007. Qur two year performance versus the FTSE100 and FTSE250 is in the graph
below:
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Acquisitions: | am pleased to report that our acquisition of ZANTAZ in July 2007 has delivered significant results, following a rapid and
successful integration. The combination of Autonomy and ZANTAZ created the unmatched leader in the space. In January 2003 we
announced an agreement to acquire Interwoven, Inc., a global leader in content management software. The combination of the two
companies will redefine how global 2000 corporations, leading law firms and govemment regulators will discover, anatyze and manage
information and interactions.
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Trends: 2008 was a transformational year for our markets. Global events converged with the fundamental change of the IT world 1o the
usage of unstructured information. Al the same time reguiatory changes such as the U.S, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure resulted in a
convergence of legal and operational information systems and the emergence of the drive towards *manage in place”. The elevation of
unstructured information issues to prime-time status also drives growth in our OEM business, where we remain the de facto standard.

The last few years have continued lo see explosive growth in the use of unstructured information, which includes documents, emails,
telephone conversations and multimedia. More than 85% of all information inside an enterprise is now unstructured and this human-
fiendly' information has traditionally been difficult for computers to understand and use, As always, cur position in the market is
underpinned by our unique value proposition: to provide the software infrastructure ihat automates operations on ali forms of information.
The unique nature of our technology delivers the only platform trdy built around Meaning Based Computing, enabling computers lo
understand the relationships that exist between disparate pieces of information and perform sophisticated analysis operations with reat
business value, automatically and in real-ime. Through the understanding of information Autcnomy empowers organizations lo
understand and capitalize on the information that really matiers to their business by enabling computers to process human-friendly
unstructured information, such as fext documents, emails, voice and video, without the need for manual intervention,

We are seeing confinuing strength as the momentum of the revolution fowards unstructured information gathers pace. We continue to
monitor the market situation closely and the incoming evidence to date confirms our previous assumptions, allowing us to be
conservatively optimistic for the remainder of 2009,

| take this opportunity to thankonZ our customers, shareholders, employees and pariners for their continued support.

Dr. Michael R. Lynch
Chief Executive Officer and Co-Founder
27 February 2009
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Financial Review for the year ended 31 December 2008

The foflowing financial review includes certain financial information extracted without adjustment from our consolidated hnancial
stalements prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.  This financial infarmation is a summary and you
should read the entire Annual Report carefilly.

Operating Results

Revenues for 2008 totalled $503.2 million, up 47% from $343.4 million in 2007. Sales were positively impacted in 2008 by organic
growth, together with the full year impact of the ZANTAZ acquisition. These results reflect our ongoing strategy focussed on licensing of
our core IDOL software and pre-configured applications.

Cost of revenues fexcluding amortisation of purchased intangibies) in 2008 totalled $45.0 million, up 15% from $39.1 million in 2007,
The increase is driven by the increased revenues. Cost of revenues as a percentage of revenues decreased from 15% in 2007 to 13% in
2008. This decrease has been driven primarily by the successful implementation of a number of efficiencies within the ZANTAZ hested
business that have been realised as a result of the combination of the IDOL technology with existing ZANTAZ infrastructures.

Amortization of purchased intangibles arise in connection with acquisitions. Amortization of purchased intangibles in 2008 totalled
$19.5 million, up 50% from $13.0 million in 2007. The ingrease is primarily attributable to the full year contribution in 2008 of amortization
of purchased intangibles acquired in connection with the ZANTAZ and Meridio acquisitions.

Gross profitin 2008 fotalled $438.7 million, up 51% from $291.3 million in 2007, commensurate with the increase in revenues but also
affected by the cost frends discussed above. Gross marging ingreased as planned fellowing the completion of the integration of ZANTAZ
and the fransition of the core ZANTAZ business to higher margin sales.

Research and development expenses in 2008 totalled $78.4 million, up 26% from $62.3 millien in 2007. The increase in research and
development expenses from 2007 to 2008 was primarily due fo increased headcount and associated expenses, both from increased
investment in the company's core technology together with new investment arising from the ZANTAZ acquisition.

Sales and marketing expenses totalled $135.2 million in 2008, up 29% from $104.4 million in 2007. The increase in sales and
marketing expenses from 2007 to 2008 was primarily due to increased advertising, additional headcount and an increase in sales
commissions due to an increase in sales and a change in the geographic and size-of-transaction mix, all of which also increased with the
expansion of the group in 2008.

General and administrative expenses totalled $42.6 miltion in 2008, up 31% from $32.5 million in 2007. The increase in general and
administrafive expenses from 2007 to 2008 was due to an increase in average headcount due to a full year contribution from ZANTAZ and
Meridio together with the Jegal, accounting and tax advice necessitated by the enlarged group.

Post-acquisition restructuring costs totalled $1.2 million in 2008, versus $1.8 million in 2007. Such costs were non-recurring costs
associated with the acquisition of ZANTAZ and Meridio.

Gain (loss) on foreign exchange totalled $5.1 million gain in 2008, compared to a loss of $0.6 million in 2007. The charge arises as a
result of movements in foreign currencies against the functional currency of the relevant operating company. This results in transactions
being settled at different amounts to the foreign currency asset or liabilities carrying value.

Profit from operations totalled $186.5 million in 2008, up 110% from $88.6 million in 2007. The increase in profit from operations from
2007 to 2008 reflects an increase in revenues from 2007 to 2008 offset by cost increases discussed above. The operational gearing of
the company is such that the increased revenues of 47% in 2008 resulted in an increase in profit from operations of 110% in 2008.

Impairment of investments during 2008 totalled $nil (2007: $1.0 million). In 2007 the company wrcte off an investment in a privately
held company.

Interest income totalled $3.4 million in 2008, down 52% from $6.9 million in 2007. Interest income in 2008 was impacted by higher cash
balances throughout 2008 compared {o 2007, but offset by interest rates which fell materially during the year in all territories.

Interest payable totalled $1.9 million in 2008, down 20% from $2.4 millien in 2007, as a result of a combination of lower interest rates and
continued scheduled capital repayments.

Profit before tax \otalled $185.7 million in 2008, up 103% from $91.4 million in 2007. The increase in profit before tax reflects an
increase in revenues from 2007 to 2008 cffset by smaller increases in costs discussed above.

Income tax charges totalled $54.0 million in 2008, up 86% from $29.0 million in 2007. The group’s effective tax rate fell from 31.7% in
2007 to 29.1% in 2008. The decrease is driven mainly by the lower tax rate of UK corporation tax of 28% which was infroduced with effect
from 1 April 2008.

Net profittotalled $131.7 million in 2008, up 111% from $62.5 million in 2007,

Basic and diluted earnings per share was at a record level of $0.61 and $0.61 per share respectively in 2008, an increase of 98% and
99% from $0.31 and $0.30 respectively in 2007.
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Financial Review for the year ended 31 December 2008

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash and cash equivalents totalled $199.2 million at 31 December 2008, versus $92.6 million at 31 December 2007.

Cash generated by operations totalled $178.8 million in 2008, an increase of 115% from $83.1 million in 2007. The increase in cash
generation from 2007 to 2008 was directly related to increased revenues, increased operating margins and srong cash collection during
the year. Income tax payments increased from $0.6m in 2007 to $32.4m in 2008 due o the increased profits.

et cash used in investing activities totalled $30.7 million in 2008, down from $398.6 million in 2007. The majority of expenditure in 2007
refated to the acquisitions of ZANTAZ and Meridio, totalling $380.8 million. The remainder of the movement in 2007, and the primary use
in 2008, related to purchases of property, plant and equipment, investments and expenditure on product research and development.

Net cash provided by financing activities totalled $4.8 miftion in 2008, down from $284.8 million in 2007. Net cash provided by financing
activities in 2007 was primarily the result of two share placements, providing net proceeds of $283.6 million, together with the proceeds of
employee share oplion exercises, offset by a net repayment of the company's bank loans. Net cash provided by financing activities in
2008 was generated by proceeds of employee share option exercises offset by repayments of the company's bank loan. The company
did not repurchase any shares during 2008 or 2007.

At 31 December 2008 the company had remaining bank debt of $37.2 million, down from $47.9 million at 31 December 2007, The fall in
the balance is due to scheduled quarterly repayments.

The company’s commitment for 2008 under operating leases is $12.2 million (2007: $9.7 million), as discussed in note 24. The company
does not have any material financial guarantees or related covenants. Substantially all of the company’s cash balances are held in short-
term deposits with AAA ratings, paying market interest rates. The company holds material cash balances in pounds sterling, U.S. dellars
and Eurgs. The company does not currently undertake currency hedging transactions to cover the company's iransaction or trans!ation
exposures, but the company may choese to hedge a portion of these exposures in the future.

The directors believe that the company's current cash and cash equivalents and cash generated from operations will be sufficient to meet
the company's anticipated cash requirements for working capital and capital expenditures for at feast the next 12 months.

Other Balance Sheet lems
Goodwil decreased to $796.6 million at 31 December 2008 from $820.1 million at the end of 2007, primarily a result of exchange
movements on sterling denominated goodwill,

Other intangible assets decreased fo $98.7 million at 31 December 2008 from $114.0 million at the end of 2007, as a result of the
amortisation charge of $24.3 million (2007: $15.3 million) offset by additions during the year and exchange movements.

Property, plant and equipment was at $27.4 million at 31 December 2008, compared to $28.8 million at the end of 2007. Additions
during the year have been partially offset by the depreciation expensed.

Equity and other investments decreased by $12.6 million to $7.4 million. The decrease is mainly attributable to fall in the share price of
blinkx Plc. The company retains a 10% interest in blinkx Ple which is measured at fair value each period end. No impairment has been
sequired for any of the group’s investments.

Deferred tax assets increased ta $13.5 million at 31 December 2008, from $8.9 million at the end of 2007, The increase is driven by the
ability of the group to recognise previously unrecognised tax and stock option losses. As the profitability and share price of the company
continues to grow then this asset may increase further.

Trade and other receivables increased to $176.8 million at 31 December 2008, up from $131.5 million at the end of 2007. The increase
is commensurate with the increased revenues of the group. Days' sales outstanding (DSOs) remained consistent at 84 days at
31 December 2008 {2007: 83 days). Other receivables increased to $35.6 milfion from $21.0 million.

Trade and other payables decreased to $31.9 million at 31 December 2008 from $41.0 million at the end of 2007. The balance at
31 December 2007 included certain acquisition related items which were one-off in nature.

Tax liabilities of $27.9 million at 31 December 2008 are up from $20.1 million from the end of 2007, driven by the increased profitability of
the group.

Deferred tax liabifities of $2.5 million &l 31 December 2008 arose during the year on the purchased intangible assets.

Deferred revenueincreased to $99.2 million at 31 December 2008 from $57.9 million at the end of 2007. The increase is a combination
of an increase in license business, offset by a reduction in professional services business which traditionally has greater deferred revenue
and significant exchange rate fluctuations.

Key Events

During 2008 the company continued to establish its core technology as the standard for automating the handling of all forms of
unstructured information. Towards this end the company's investment in research and development continued to deliver returns with
strong organic growth across the company together with contributions from recent acquisitions.
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Financial Review for the year ended 31 December 2008

Key Risks
The key risks to which the business is exposed are summarized as follows:

«  Qur business depends on our core technology, currently marketed under the brand IDOL, and our strategy has been, and for
the foreseeable future will continue to be, to concentrate our efforts on developing and marketing software based on our
proprietary technology. Technology which significantly competes with the company's technology would present a material risk
fo the company.

s Expenditures increasing without a commensurate increase in revenues, and rapid changes in market conditions, could result in
poor operating resuits.

»  The average selling prices of our products could decrease rapidly, which may negatively impact revenues and gross margins.

s The continuation of unfavorable economic and market conditions.

Qur reliance on sales of our products by third parties such as value added resellers makes it difficult to predict our revenues,

cash flow and operating resuts.

Our ability to expand sales through indirect sellers.

The continued service of our executive directors,

The hiring and retention of qualified personnel,

Errors or defects in our products, which could negatively affect our revenues and the market acceptance of our produets and

increase our costs.

= Problems encountered in connection with potential acquisitions.

«  Claims by others that we infringe on their intellectual property rights.

The company’s policies applicable to employees addressing key business risks, including financial, communications, whistle blowing and
health and safety, are made available through policy manuals and the company's intranet site.

The processes to identify and manage the key risks to the success of the company are an integral part of the internal control environment.
Such processes, in addiion to those discussed abave, include strategic planning, appointing highly skilled managers with accountability,
regular monitoring of performance and setting and communicating high standards and targets for ethics, safety and health.

Key Performance Indicators
The company has several key performance measures used internally to monitor and challenge performance and to assist investment
decisions. The mast important performance indicaters in the current and prior years are summarized as follows::

2008 2007 % Change

REVEINU. ...covn i ar et ss s s s st ar s s st s s s s e $503.2m $343.4m 47%
Gross margins (adjusted)*.......... 91% 9% 3%

Operating margins (adjusted)*.... 4% 32% 30%
EPS (adjusted)” (5€e NotE 10)........cccocmnimmrmemmmnrrrrmers s sersssrss s sesssrsssssesesssssssens 50.68 $0.38 81%
Cash DAIANCES ....vvvovviecriinr st st isasss st sbs s s e s smsss s ssssssseseneses $199.2m $92.6m 115%
Research and development expenditure $78.4m $62.3m 26%
Average HoadOoUN! ... eeni e et s st s s s brnn 1,248 1,134 10%

For adjusted results details and reconciliations see page 26.

The elimination of low margin businesses and continued operational efficiencies have contributed to the increase in 2008. Gross margin
for the fourth quarter of 2008 was 32%.

The increase in operating margins and EPS is a reflection of significantly increased revenue, due to a combination of strong organic
growth and the full year impact of acquisitions, versus the company’s relatively fixed cost-base.

Cash balances have increased significantly during the year. This is driven by the cash generated from operations of $178.8 million offset
by tax payments, capital expenditure and repayment of debt.

The company continues to invest heavily in research and development, with an increase of 26% in 2008 from 2007.
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Board of Directors and Management

Autonomy is led by a closeknit and highly experienced management team. They bring togeiher extensive expertise covering every facet
of information technology and its constituent seclors and markets.

Board of Directors
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Dr. Michael Lynch OBE FREng, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, 43, co-founded
Autonomy and has served as Managing Direclor and Chief Executive Officer since our inception in March
1696. Or. Lynch is also a non-executive direcior of the BBC, blinkx Pic, Isabel Healthcare Limited and
Featurespace Limited, Dr, Lynch holds an M.A. in electrical and information sciences, 2 Ph.D in adaptive
techniques in signal processing and connectionist models and held a research fellawship in adaptive pattern
recognition at Cambridge University. Or Lynch was named the Confederation of Briish Indusiry's
Entrepreneur of the Year, won an [EE Award for Quistanding Achievement and was awarded an OBE for
Services to Enterprise. Dr Lynch is also a Lady Margaret Beaufort Fellow of Christ's College, Cambridge, and
the author of a number of academic papers on the subject of Pattern Recognition and Signal Processing.
Or. Lynch was appointed to the Board when Autonomy was founded in 1996,

Sushovan Hussain, Board Director and Chief Financial Offfcer, 44, has served as Chief Financial Officer
since Juna 2001 and was appoinied a Direclor in June 2003. Piior to joining Autonomy, Mr, Hussain worked
for LASMO ple, one of the world's largest independent oil and gas exploration companies, where he held a
number of senior international financial positions, including three years in the Corporate Development
department, chamged with acquisitions and divestments. Mr. Hussain received his BA in Economics from
Cambridge University, England, and became a qualified Chartered Accountant while employed at Emst &
Young in London. Mr. Hussain was appointed to the Board in June 2003,

Richard Gaunt, Board Director, 41, co-founded Autonomy and has served as an executive and non-
executive Director at times since our inception in March 1996. Mr. Gaunt holds a BSc in electronic
engineering and an MSc from the University of Natal in Durban. Mr. Gaunt was appointed to the Board when
Autonomy was founded in 1996.

Bairy Ariko, Board Director, 63, has served as a non-executive director of Autonomy since January 2000,
From November 2003, Mr. Ariko has served as CEQ and President of Mirapoint, Inc., a leader in messaging
networks. From January 2000, until it was acquired by Peregrine Systems in May 2001, he was Chairman,
CEO and President of Exiricity, Inc., a provider of software for the management of inter-company transactions
and workflow, Prior to Extricity, he was Senior Vice President of AOL, which had acquired Netscape
Communications Comp., where he was Executive Vice President and Chiel Operating Officer with primary
responsibility for the enterprise software business since August 1998. From Aprl 1994 to August 1998, Mr.
Ariko was Executive Vice President in charge of the Americas operations for Oracle Comp. Mr. Arike also
serves as a director of Incyte. Mr. Arko holds a B.S. in Management from Golden Gate University in San
Francisco and in 1992 completed the Advanced Executive Program at Nosthwestem University's J. L. Kellogg
Graduate School of Management.

John McManigall, Board Director, 65, has served as a non-executive director of Autonomy since July 1398.
Since April 1990, Mr. McMonigall has been a pariner with Apax Pariners Worldwide LLP, the private equity
firm, where he specializes in telecommunications, software and related fields. From 1986 to 1950, M.
McMonigall held a variety of positions at British Telecom where he served as a member of the Management
Board. He currently serves on the board of Dialog Semiconductar Ple. Mr. McMonigall also serves on the
boards of several privately owned companies as a non-executive direclor.

Richard N. Perfe, Board Director, 5, has served as a non-executive director of Autonomy since February
2000. Mr. Perle has served as Resident Fellow of the American Enterprise Institute for Public Policy Research
since 1987. From 1881 to 1987 he was the Uniled States Assistant Secretary of Defense for International
Security Policy, and from 2001 through 2003 served as Chairman of the U.S. Defanse Policy Board. Mr. Perle
is a director of Tapestry Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a pharmaceutical company focused on the development of
proprietary therapies for the treatment of cancer. He is a director of FNSS, a joint venture between Nurol (a
Turkish company} and British Aerospace. He is a consultant to Clarium Capital, a U.S. based hedge fund.. Mr.
Perle atfended the London Scheol of Economics with Honors Examinations, received an M.A. in politics from
Princeton University and a B.A. from the University of Southern California in infernational relations, and
completed various fellowships at Princeton University, the Ford Foundation and the American Council of
Leamed Societies.




Board of Directors and Management

Executive Management

Dr. Peter Menell, D.Phil. Oxon, Chief Technology Officer, 40, joined Autonomy's Engineering and
Technalogy Solutions unit in 1998 and has served as Chief Technology Officer since 2004. During that time
he has overseen a number of significant advances in Autonomy technelogy, including key new patents filed,
and been responsible for the successful deployment of Autonomy software at multi-divisional organizations
across the globe. Prior o joining Autonomy, Dr. Menell conducted computational and neuro-physiclogy
research, Dr. Menell holds a B.A. {Hons) and M.Sc. from York University and a D.Phil. from Magdaten College
Oxford.

Andrew M. Kanter, Chief Operating Officer and General Counsel, 39, joined Autonomy in August 2000 as
VP, International Ops. and Legal Affairs, and has served as our COO since 2001. Prior to joining Autonomy,
through 2000 Mr. Kanler was an associate attorney with Brobeck Hale and Dorr in London, engaged in
international mergers and acquisitions and corporate finance. Through 1999, Mr. Kanter was an associate
attorney at Brobeck, Phteger & Harison in San Francisco, and prior to that was an associate attorney with
Shearman & Sterling, San Francisco. Mr. Kanter was Clerk to Hon. Christine Miller of the U.S. Cour of
Federal Claims, Washington, DC. Mr. Kanter holds a J.D. from the University of Southern California and a
B.A. from Johns Hopkins University, and also studied at Kansai University of Foreign Studies, Osaka, Japan.

Nicole Eagan, Chief Marketing Officer, 44, joined the Autonomy Group as Chief Marketing Officer in
January 2006. Prior to working for Autonomy Ms Eagan served Verity as a Senior Vice President of Marketing
and Chief Marketing Officer from June 2005. Before joining Verity, Ms. Eagan was Vice President, Global
Marketing at Quest Software, an application, database and Windows management company from 2004 fo
2005. Prior to Quest, Ms. Eagan was the Senior Vice President of Global Marketing at Peregrine from 2001 to
2004. Ms. Eagan also held senior marketing, strategy and business development positions at Extricity, a
business process management company and Oracle Corporation. Ms. Eagan holds a B.S. from Montclair
University, N.J..

Stouffer Egan, CEO Autonomy, Inc., 40, joined Autonomy in March 2001 as Director of Global Accounts.
He has served as our Chief Executive Officer, Autonamy, Inc., since 2002. Prior to joining Autonomy, from
February 2000 through to March 2001, Mr. Egan was Vice President of Cerporate Development for
LeadingSide Inc. From January 1995 through February 2000, Mr. Egan held various positions with Dataware
Technolagies, most recently as Vice President, Corporate Development. Mr. Egan holds a B.A. in Economics
from Trinity College, CT.
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Anthony Bettencourt, Corporate Strategy, 48, has more than 20 years of senior managemant experience in
a variety of high-tech companies and, most recently, as an entrepreneur-in-residence at US Venture Partners.
Previously, Anthony was the Chief Executive Officer of Verity, Inc., where he was responsible for growing the
business from $15 million in annua! revenues to more than $140 million from 19895 to 2005. A veteran of the
enterprise search market, Anthony led the team that set the strategic direction and execution characteristics of
Verily, resulting in Verily's acquisition by Autenomy at the end of 2005. In 2005, he was awarded the
prestigious Emst & Young Entrepreneur of the Year award for software and technology in the Silicon Valiey.
Anthony holds a B.A. in English from Santa Clara University.
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Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2008

The directors present their report and group audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008, The group's business
activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are set outin the Business Review and
Financial Review on pages 2 to 7. The financial position of the group, its cash flows, liquidity position and borrowing facilities are
described in the financial review on pages 5 to 7. In addition note 27 to the financial statements includes the group's cbjectives, policies
and processes for managing its capital and risk management along with details of exposures to credit risk and liquidity risk.

Principal Activity

The principal activity of the group during 2008 continued to be software development and distribution and related support, maintenance
and consulting services, The group has activities throughout Europe, North America, Asia and Australia, with smaller operations in other
territories.

Review of Developments and 2008 Results

Results of the company are set out beginning on page 26. Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2008 was $503.2 million, an
increase of 47% from $343.4 million in 2007, Net profit (adjusted) was $148.0 million for 2008, compared with net profit (adjusted) of
$77.2 million in 2007. The company solidified its industry-leading position during 2008. The Financial Review beginning on page 5
provides further comment on the developments and the results for the year, as well as risks and uncertainties.

Enhanced Business Review
The information required in the enhanced business review is set out in this report, the letter from the CEOQ and the Financial Review, which
also report on the business and principal issues of the past year and future prospects.

Research and Development

The group remains firmly committed to research and development o maintain its position as a market leader. During the year the group
expensed $78.4 million refated to research and development {2007; $62.3 million), an increase of 26%. In addition, the group capitalised
$11.2 mitlion (2007: $6.9 million) of qualifying research and development expenditure as required in accordance with JAS 38.

Dividends

The Board reviews uses of cash resources on an ongoing basis. In light of the company's continued need for cash for potential trade
investments and expected significant investment in further research and development, the company te date has not paid or declared
dividends, in common with most of its peer companies in the high technology sector. The policy will be kept under continual review.
Accordingly the directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2007 - ENIl).

Authority to Purchase Own Shares

At the last Annual General Meeting, sharehciders authorized market purchases by the company of up to 31,799,701 ordinary shares
representing approximately 14.9% of its issued share capital at that time. The authority will expire at the end of the next Annual General
Meeling of the company unless renewed at that meeting. During 2008 the company did not conduct any share repurchases. In total, the
company has purchased for cancellation 20,997,824 shares, representing approximately 9.7% of the company's total issued share capital
at 31 December 2008, at an average price of £1.65 per share, for aggregate consideration of £34.5 million. As of 31 December 2008, the
cempany had remaining autherization to repurchase 31,799,701 of the company's ordinary shares. Any repurchase program during 2009
will depend on market conditions.

Financial Instruments

The directors' objectives in relation to the use of financial instruments are to minimize risk whilst achieving maximum return on liquid
assets. The directors are averse to principal loss and manage the safety and preservation of the company's invested funds by limiting
default and market risks by investing with high rated financial institutions. The company’s investment porifolio is comprised entirely of
cash and cash equivalents with AAA-rated institutions. All short-term investments have a fixed interest rate. The company does not use
derivative financial instruments.

The group historically has not faced material exposure to price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk or cash flow risk, outside of the ordinary course
of business. The company is marginally exposed io interest rate risk through the company's bank loan.

Further information about the company’s financial assets and liabilities is provided in the noles to the financial statements.

Future Developments

The company's stated objective is to establish its technology as the infrastructure standard for automating operations on all forms of
unstructured information. The directors continue to believe that to achieve this goal it is important to expand the number and range of
potential customers for its technology. To this end, the company intends 1o sign further licence agreements with new customers and to
establish relationships with third-party value added resellers, services providers and OEMs to ensure that the company's products are
distributed as widely as practicable. The company also plans to develop new technology to license to new and existing customers. The
company is afso presented with opportunities from time to time to acquire complementary technology or resources. Research and
development activities are discussed above. The company operates through offices around the glabe, all of which are engaged in the
primary business of the company.

Directors and Their Interests

A list of the directors who served during the year, their interests in the ordinary share capital of the company, details of share options and
details of service contracts are set forth in the Remuneration Committee report beginning on page 16. Biographies for all Directors are on
page 8. No director had a material interest in any significant contract, other than a service contract or contract for services, with the
company or any of its subsidiaries at any time during the year.
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Directors' Report for the year ended 31 December 2008

Re-¢lection of Directors

The company's Adicles of Association require at least one third of the directors to be subject to re-election at each Annual General
Meeting. Messrs. Gaunt and Perle were re-elected as directors at the company's Annual General Meeting in 2006 and are standing for
ra-glection al the next Annual General Meeting. In addition Mr. McMonigall is standing for re-election in accordance with 2006 FRC
Combined Code. Each individual's performance continues to be exemplary and they demonstrate commitment to their roles.

Substantial Shareholdings
As 27 February 2009, the company had been notified, in accordance with Sections 198 to 208 of the Companies Act 1985, of the following
interests in the ordinary share capital of the company by persans other than the directors of the company:

Ordinary shares of 1/3p each (1)

Number %
FMR COmP.oenceccverierensnrcssan e 23,753,244 9.97
Standard Life investments LIMied.......coo.eocicveienmcnsin e 11,491,661 483
Fidelity Intemational LIMItEd.............evceeeeemerceniersereenrcerenessecasmsesacsesssesnenenns 11,381,329 4,78
SCNIOAENS PIC ...t s 9,912,060 4.16
OppenheimerFunds, Inc. ........ 8,594,364 KRt
Legal & General Group Pic..... 8,517,490 3.58
TIAACCREF oo oo i ess e e st et e serts 6,700,772 2.81

{1) Based on 238,139,529 ordinary shares outstanding as of 27 February 2009.

Supplier Payment Policy

The company's policy is to setile payment terms with all suppliers when agreeing a transaction, to ensure that suppliers are aware of the
terms and fo abide by such terms. Generally the company pays suppliers at the end of the month following that in which the supplier's
invoice is received. Creditor days outstanding as at 31 December 2008 calculated in accordance with Schedule 7 Companies Act 1985
for the company was 22 days {2007 - 53 days} and for the principal U.K. subsidiary was 85 days (2007 - 85 days).

Employees
Matters relafing to the company's employees, including disabled employees, are discussed on page 21.

Corporate, Social and Environmental Matters
Matters relating to corporate, social and environmental matters are discussed on page 21.

Charitable and Political Contributions

The company's charitable palicies are discussed on page 22. The group made $152,000 in charitable donations during 2008 to a variety
of charities including the Prince’s Trust, the University of Calgary and Alderburgh Music Festival (2007 - $155,000). The group did not
make any political contributions during 2008 (2007 - $Nil).

Going Concern

The group has considerable financial resources together with contracts with a number of customers across different geographic areas and
industries. As a consequence, the directors believe that the group is well placed to manage its business risks successfully. After making
enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company and the group have adeguate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concem basis in preparing the annual
report and accounts.

Capital Structure

The structure of the company's capital consists solely of ordinary shares, nominal value 1/3p per share. There are no restrictions imposed
by the company on the transfer of securities in the company or limitations on the holding of securities or requirements to obtain approvat
for a transfer of securities. The Substantial Shareholdings table above sets forth such details as are known to the company of the identity
of persons holding a significant direct or indirect interest, and the holdings size. The company has no information with regards to the
heldings to believe such holdings are for any reason other than ordinary financial investment purposes. The company has an Employee
Benefit Trust which holds approximately 448,000 ardinary shares of the company and approximately 496,800 ordinary shares of blinkx
Plc. All rights with respect fo such shares are exercised by the independent trustee of the trust. There are no restrictions on voting rights
on the company's ardinary shares, including any limitations on voting rights of holders of a given percentage or number of voles,
deadlines for exercising voling rights, or arrangements by which with the company’s co-operation financial ights carried by securities are
held by a person other than the holder of the securities. The company is not aware of any agreements between holders of securities
which may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or voting rights. The company does nat have any rules tegarding the
appointment and replacement of directors and amendment of the Articles of Association other than those set forth in the Aricles of
Association. The powers of the directors are as set forth in the company’s Atticles of Association and as permitted by shargholders
pursuant to the company’s Annual General Meeting. The company is not party to any material agreements that take effect, alter or
terminate upen a change of contro! following a takeover bid, or any agreements between the company and its directors or employees
providing for compensation or foss of office or employment that occur because of a takeover bid.
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Directors’ Report for the year ended 31 December 2008

Indemnity Provisions

Al the company's Annual General Meeting in May 2006 shareholders approved an amendment to the company's Articles of Association
providing for indemnification of directors, which remains in force. A copy of the company’s Memarandum and Adicles of Association are
available for inspection at the company's office and from Companies House. No qualifying third party indemnity provisions or any
qualifying pension scheme indemnity provisions are in force as of the date of this report or were in force during the year ended 31
December 2008,

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held at the company's offices in Cambridge, UK, on 27 March 2009, at 4:30 p.m.. The company will
convey the results of proxy votes cast at the meeting, and the results will be announced through the regulatary news services. Nofice of
the Annual General Meeting is set out in the circular to shareholders accompanying this annual report. The company is comsritted to the
policy of one share one vote. Deloifte LLP, the company's independent auditors, have expressed their willingness to continue in office as
auditors. A resolution to reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Megting.

Audit
Each of the persons who were a director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that;

e sofaras he is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditors are unaware; and

e he has taken all seasonable steps that he ought to have taken as a direcior in order to make himseif aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of Section 234724 of the Companies Act 1985.
On behaf of the Board,

Dr. Michael R. Lynch
Chief Executive Officer and Co-Founder
27 February 2009

Registered Office: Cambridge Business Park, Cowley Raad, Cambridge CB4 OWZ
Registered Number, 3175909
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Corporate Governance Statement

The company is committed to high standards of corporate govemance. The Board is accountable to the company's shareholders for good
corporate governange. This statement describes how the principles of corporate governance are applied and the company's compliance
with the 2006 FRC Combined Code for Corporate Governance {the “Code”} appended to the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority.

Compliance with the 2006 FRC Combined Code

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2008, and through to the date of appraval of the financial statements, the Board considers that
the company has complied with Section 1 of the Code. The company has applied the Principles of Good Governance set out in Section 1
of the Code by complying with the Code of Best Practice as set forth below and in the Remuneration Report below. Further explanation of
how the principles and supporting principles have been applied is set out below and in the directors’ remuneration report.

Composition and Qperation of the Board

The Board comprises four non-executive directors (three of whom are independent), and two executive directors. The Beard has been
established in order to give a balance of knowledge, experience and objective overview. The executive directors provide the necessary
skills in commerciaf, operational and financial management. The executive directors on the Board are the Chief Executive Officer and the
Chief Financial Officer.

The four non-execulive directors provide a blend of experience to enable them to bring strong independent judgement and considerable
knowledge and experience 1o the Board's deliberations. Mr. McMonigall is the senior independent non-executive director. The Board has
considered the independence of the non-executive directors and believes that all are currently independent of management and free from
any malerial business or other relationships that could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgement, with the
exception of Mr. Gaunt who served as an executive director through the end of 2005. Mr. McMonigall's service to the Board has been
extraordinary since the company's founding and his continued service is of high benefit notwithstanding his tenure of over ten years.

The directors' biographies appear on page 8. These demonstrate that the directors have a range of experience and are of sufficient
calibre to bring independent judgement on issues of strategy, performance, resources, finance, controls and standards of conduct. The
Board in recent years has not sat with a permanent chairman, but rather the chair rotated amongst the senior non-executive members
present at the meeting, with the meeting’s chair sitting until the next meeting. This arrangement has been in place whilst the Board
continues to search for an appropriate chairman. A broad range of candidates were considered during 2008, A candidate for chairman
was to be passed to the committee for approval during year, but fell ill prior to his nomination and his candidacy was withdrawn.
Additional candidates are being considered as of the date of this report, with an appointment announcement expected imminently.

The Board is structured to ensure that there is no undue dominance by the executive directors, with controls over compensation and all
other material matters reserved for the Board rather than individual executives, as discussed below. The Board is satisfied that the
appropriate balance has been consistently achieved. The terms and conditions of employment of the non-executives are available for
inspection at any time at the registered office.

The Board is responsible to shareholders for the proper management of the company. A statement of the directors’ responsibilities in
respect of the financial statements is set out on page 23. Training is made available to the directors where it is considered appropriate.
New members of the Board are expected to receive induction training in accordance with the recommendations of the 2006 FRC
Combined Code.

Schedule of Matters

The Beard has a schedule of matters specifically reserved fo it for decision, which includes approval of financial statements, dividends,
Board appointments and removals, long term objectives and commercial strategy, changes in capital structure, appointment, removal and
compensation of senior management, major investments including mergers and acguisitions, rfisk management, corporate governance,
engagement of professional advisors, political donations and internal control arangements. The ultimate responsibility for reviewing and
approving the annual report and financial statements, and for ensuring that they present a balanced assessment of the company's
position, lies with the Board.

Board and Committee Meetings
The Board meets at least once a quarter. Prior to each meeting, the Board is furnished with informaticn in a form and quality appropriate
for i to discharge its duties concerning the state of the business and performance. Board and committee activities in 2008 were as

follows:

Meetings Written Consent Allendance
Board of Directors . 5 1 Note 1
Audit Committee ........... 4 — Note 2
Remuneration Committee., - 1 -
Nominations COMMIHEE........cccoiiiireesreentems s s e sersessse st st s st s s 1 — -

(1)  Alldirectors attended 100% of meetings.
(2) Alldirectors attended 100% of meetings other than Mr. Perle who missed one meeting for personal reasons.

Company Secretary

Al directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who is responsible to the Board for ensuring that the
Board procedures are followed and that applicable rules and regulations are complied with. The Company Secretary ensures thal the
directors take independent professional advice as required. Committees are provided with sufficient financial and informational resources
to undertake their duties.
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Corporate Governance Statement

Re-Election
All directors are subject to re-election by shareholders every three years, and at each annual general meeting one third retire by rotation.
Directors who are appointed by the Board retire at the next annual general meeting so that they may be re-elected by shareholders.

Committees
The Board has established an Audit Commitlee, a Remuneration Committee and a Nominations Committee to deal with specific aspects
of the company’s affairs:

»  Audit Committee. The members of the audit committee are Messrs. McMonigall, Ariko and Perle. Each of Messrs. McMonigall
and Ariko have significant financial expertise, and each have served as the chair at times during 2008. The committee’s terms
of reference include, among other things, monitoring the scope and results of the external audit, the review of interim and
annual results, the involvement of the external auditors in those processes, review of whistle blowing procedures, censidering
compliance with legal requirements, accounting standards and the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and for
advising the Board an the requirement to maintain an effective system of internal controls. The commitiee also keeps under
review the indepandence and objectivity of the group’s external auditors, value for money of the audit and the nature, extent
and cost-effectiveness of the non-audit services provided by the auditors. The committee has authority over the appointment,
remuneration and resignation or dismissal of the company's auditors.

The commitiee has discussed with the external auditors their independence, and has received and reviewed written
disclosures from the external auditors regarding independence. Non-audit work is generally put out to tender. In most cases,
the company engages another independent firm of accountants to perform tax consulting work te avoid the possibility that the
auditors' objectivity and independence could be compromised; work is enly carried out by the auditors in cases where they are
best suited to perform the work, for example, tax compliance. The company does not award general consulting work to the
auditors. However, from time fo time, the company will engage the auditors on matters relating to acquisition accounting and
due ditigence. In these circumstances, the Chief Financial Officer seeks approval from the commitiee.

The committee meets at least four times a year, and always prior to the announcement of interim or annual results. The
external auditors and Chief Financial Officer attend all meetings in order to ensure that all the information required by the
committee is available for it to operate effectively. The entire committee also meets each quarter with the external auditors
without any executive directors present.

¢  Remuneration Committee. A description of the composition, responsibility and operation of the remuneration commities is set
out in the remuneration report beginning on page 15.

»  Nominations Committee. The committee currently consists of Messrs. Ariko and Perle, with Mr. Perle in the chair. The
Nominations Committee has responsibility for proposing to the Board new appointments of executive and non-executive
directors and makes recommendations io the Board on board compositicn and balance. The commiltee identifies and
nominates for approval candidates for new Board positions and to fill Board vacancies as and when they arise, Nominations
are based on the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board. The committee also reviews the time required
from a non-executive director. The committee strives to consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, also taking
into account what skills and expertise are needed on the Board in the future. In conducting its duties the committee may seek
external advice.

The Company Secretary is secretary to all committees. No one other than committee chairmen and members are entitled to be present at
a meeting of the nomination, audit or remuneration commitiees, but others may attend at the invitation of the committee. Terms of
references of the committees of the Board are available from the Company Secretary upon request.

Performance Evaluations

The members of the Board evaluate the performance of the Board, its committees and individual members at meetings, at the first
meeting following the end of the year. The non-execulive directors, led by the senior independent director, are responsible for the scope
of the evaluation, taking into account the views of executive directors.

Relations with Shareholders

Communication with shareholders is given high priority. The quarterly and annual results are intended to give a detailed review of the
business and developments. A full Annuat Report is sent to ali shareholders. The company's website {www.autonomy.com) contains up
to date information on the company's activities and published financial results. The company holds regular investor conference calls and
webcasts (archived on the website), and solicits regular dialogue with institutional shareholders (other than during closed periods) to
understand shareholders views. The Board also uses the Annual General Meeting 1o communicate with all shareholders and welcomes
their participation. Direclors are available to meet with shareholders at appropriate times.

Significant Risks

The company has an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the company that has been in
place for 2008 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. Principal controls are managed by the
executive directors and key employees, including regular review by management and the Beard of the operations and the financial
statements of the company.
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Internal Control

The Board fs responsible for the company’s system of internal conirol and for reviewing its effectiveness with regard to achieving the
company's business objectives and enhancing shareholder value. Such a system is designed to manage the risk of failure, and by its
nature can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or foss. The system has been in place
throughout the year and up to the date of these financial statements, The Board regularly reviews the effectiveness of the company’s
inferna control systems, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management, and believes the system is in
accordance with the revised Tumbull guidance. These reviews are principally based on reports from management to consider whether
significani risks are identified, evaluated, managed and controlled and whether any significant weaknesses are promplly remedied or
indicate a need for more extensive monitoring. The Board has also performed a specific assessment for purposes of this Anrual Report
using the standard of care applicable to directors in the exercise of their duties. The directors consider thal its internal controls,
particularly given the company's size and the nature of the company's business operations, provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material missiatement or loss.

The main elements of internat controt currently include:

»  Operating Controls. The identification and mitigation of major business risks on a daily basis is the responsibility of the
executive directors and senior management. Each business function within the company maintains controls and procedures,
as directed by senior management, appropriate to its own business environment while conforming fe the company's standards
and guidelines. These include procedures and guidelines o identify, evaluate the fikelihood and mitigate all types of risks on
an ongoing basis.

+ Information and Communication. The company's operating procedures include a comprehensive system for reporting financiat
and non-financial information 4o the directors. Financial projections, including revenue and profit forecasts, are reported on a
reguiar basis to senior management against comesponding figures for previous periods. The central process for evaluating and
managing non-financial risks is weekly meetings of business functions, each involving at least one director, together with
periodic meetings of executive directors and senior management.

«  Finance Management. The finance deparment operates within policies approved by the direciors and the Chief Financial
Officer. Expenditures are tightly controlled with stringent approvals required based on amount. Outies such as legal, finance,
sales and operations are also sirictly segregated to minimize risk.

= Insurance. Insurance cover is provided externally and depends on the scale of the risk in question and the availability of cover
in the external market,

Internal Audit

As the company has grown during 2008 the Board has discussed matters relating to intemal control and the present need to establish an
internal audit function. Given the company's extensive interna! reporting functions, extensive intermal controls and significant executive
direclor involvement in all aspects of the company's business affairs during 2008, the Board did not consider it necessary for the company
to have its own internal audit function although a senior manager is responsibie for internal reviews. No material breaches of intemal
controls were identified during 2008.

Conflicts

Throughout 2008 the company has complied with procedures in place for ensuring that the board's powers to authorize conflict situations
have been operated effectively. Dursing 2008 no conflicts arose which would require the board to exercise authority ar discretion in relation
to such conflicts.

Key Risks
Matters relating to key risks are discussed on page 7.

Company Secretary

27 February 2009
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Remuneration Report

The directors present their report on directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2008,

Compliance
The constitution and operation of the Remuneration Committee is in compliance with the principles of Sectior 1 of the Code.

UNAUDITED REMUNERATION INFORMATION

Members of the Remuneration Committee
The members of the Remuneration Committee are Messrs. Ariko, McManigall and Perle. The chairman of the commitiee is Mr. Ariko.

Governing Principles

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving general compensation policies and setting compensation levels
for executive officers. The committee also administers incentive compensation plans. Consistent with the policies of the Code, the
company's policy for directors' remuneration for 2008 and subsequent financial years is that packages are intended to attract, motivate
and retain directors of the calibre needed to achieve the company's growth program but not detract from the goals of good corporate
governance. Remuneration elsewhere within the company is taken into account when determining executive compensafion. The
company's highest paid employee earns a base salary approximately five times the base salary of the average employee.

The main elements of executive pay packages historically and for the expected future are:

o Base salary and benefits. Each senior executive’s basic salary is determined by the Commitiee, taking into account the
performance of the individual and the company's strategies. Employment related benefits (principally the provision of a
company car) are also provided where appropriate.  Executive directors” base salaries are low relative to similarly situated
companies, with performance-based incentive compensation forming the most imperiant factor in overall compensation.
Pensions are based on base salary only.

+  Bonuses. In accordance with common practice amongst the company's peers, the company has performance related bonus
plans for certain executive directors, discussed below. Bonuses are paid based on achievement of pre-agreed targets.

+  Share options. The Board beligves that share ownership by directors and staff aligns their personal interests with those of
shareholders. Options form the core efement of the company's performance program, and are granted in small amounts from
time-to-time after achievement of stretching performance targets and significant continuing contribution to value creation,
These share option awards are then subject to vesting periods, with initial vesting generally after 8 or 12 months with the
remainder vesting over a total of 2.5 10 3.5 years.

The requirement for individuals to perform prior to granting options has been very effective in motivating performance,
achieving targeis and (most importantly) minimizing reward unconnected to an individual's performance. !t enables the
company to specifically tailor grants to an individual's role in an efficient manner, thus avoiding the risks faced by companies in
a high growth sector of unjust reward associated with simple, broad targets attached only to option exercises. For example, a
programmer might be awarded a small grant for completion of a project ahead of schedule, or a locat operations manager
might be awarded a small gran! for effective integration of an acquired company. This method also keeps individuals
continuously incentivized as a grantee must remain employed to achieve full vesting of the options. This method is also
designed o ensure that individuals are not unjustly rewarded, which the Board believes is much more likely if large option
grants are made with broad performance targets. Under that methed, an individual who was personally underperforming would
undeubledly be enriched if the company met its own broader performance targets, without making any material contribution.

During 2008 conditions for exercise of performance options were approved as follows: 30% of the grant will vest for exercise at
the end of three years if the group’s EPS growth exceeds the increase in the RPI over that period by 15%, and 100% of the
grant will vest for exercise at the end of three years if the group’s EPS growth exceeds the increase in the RPI over that period
by 27%, with a straight-ine increase between the two targets. These targets are equal to the most streiching targets used by
any peer company, and were deemed appropriate given the company's growth profile and targets.

The Board sefs reasonable individual grant limits. As a result, at 31 December 2008, the Board collectively held options over
0.32% of outstanding equity, and options granted to the Board during 2008 totalled 0.09%, of the company’s outstanding
shares at 31 December 2008. The total number of options granted to Board members totalled less than 10% of alt share
options outstanding at 31 December 2008.

Share options are always issued at market value. The maximum number of share options the company is permitted to grant is
up to 10% of the outstanding shares. There has been no departure from this policy during 2008.

Advice

The committee has access to professional advice from outside advisors should it require assistance. During 2008 the diractors relied on
information contained in generally available reports but did not engage any firm. Directors’ remuneration is considered io be highly
incentive-based given the executive directors' significant equity holdings in the company and the performance-based bonus plans.

Considerations

The committee is able to consider corporate performance on envirgnmental, social and governance issues when setting remuneration of
executive directors, and io date has had no reason to believe that the incentive structure for senior management raises risks related to
such matiers by inadveriently motivating irresponsible behaviour.
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Service Contracts

The company's policies prohibit long-fixed confracts and contractual termination payments. The company requires mutual nofice petiods
for directors, but never in excass of 12 months. All execulive directors have service contracts and all non-executive directors have
appointment letters. All agreements provide for notice of 12 months or less, although do not have a specified fixed term, and all permit
garden leave up to the length of the notice peripd. No other amounts are payable on termination. All terms of appointment are subject fo
the provisions of the Companies Act 1985 and the requirement to retire by rotation on the third anniversary of the previous election.

Details of directors’ service contracts are available on the company's website. No director is entitied to any automatic payment by virtue of
early termination of their contract or a change in control of the company. Directors' remuneration is not linked to share price perfermance.
Details of executive directors’ service contracts as at foday's date are follows:

Executive Directors Contracts Mutual
Date Annual Salary Bonus Notica Period

Dr Michael Lynch, Chief Executive Offiger ........c.ooececncevnne. 3 July 1998 £300,000 see below 6 months

Sushovan Hussain, Chief Financial Officer ..., 27 June 2001 £270,000 see below 12 months

In 2008 executive directors were eligible for bonuses of 50% of base salary for achieving (i) revenue growth of at least 33% and
(ii) adjusted earnings per share growth of at least 32%, with eligibility for an additional 25% of base salary for revenue growth of more than
38% and an additicnal 25% of base salary for adjusted eamings per share growth of more than 48%. The targets were selected as
ohjective, challenging growth fargets designed to mest the growth cbjectives of the company. In selecting the targets and levels of
compensation the committee reviewed the plans of sirilarly situated technology companies and analyst consensus forecasts. For 2008
each of the upper-end targets were achieved

Each executive director is enfilled to current benefits generally made available to all employees and any fees or remuneration he is
entitied to as a director of Autonomy. Payment of salary in lieu of notice is permitted on termination. For a fixed peried following the
fermination of employment, each of Dr. Lynch and Mr. Hussain are prohibited from soliciting the company's clients, customers and
employees and from competing with us in a similar geographic area.

Messrs. Ariko, McMonigall and Perle serve as directors under appoiniment letters dated 7 January 2000, 2 July 1998 and 23 February
2000, respectively, Under these letiers as updated, Messrs. Arko and Perle are each entiled to an annual fee of §70,000, Mr.
McMonigall is entifled o an annual fee of £35,000. Either party o each of these letters may terminate the appointment upon three
months’ notice or payment of salary in lieu of notice. Mr. Gaunt serves as a director under an appointment letter dated 9 July 1998.
Under this letter, as updated, Mr Gaunt is entitled to an annual fee of £18,000. Either party may terminate the appointment upon six
months’ notice or payment of salary in lieu of notice.

Performance Graph

The accompanying graph seis forth the fotat shareholder return for the last five years of a holding of the company’s shares against the
corresponding change in a hypothetical helding of shares in the FTSE100 and FTSE250 Indexes. These indexes represent broad equity
market indexes in which {he company, and similar companies, are constituent members.

Graphic Removed For Companies House
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Remuneration Report

AUDITED REMUNERATION INFORMATION

Directors’ Remuneration
The total amounts for directors’ remuneration were as follows:

2008 2007
£ £

EMOIMENLS ...o.vevseescrtsi e sre s siasnes s ss st ss b s s £ a8 1 4t p sttt o 1,282,581 847,411
Gains on exercise of share options............. . 1,811,947 1,729,505
Money purchase pension confributions ...........oveanere. 16,580 14,250

3,111,108 2,591,166

The following table sets forth the elements of each director's remuneration package for the year ended 31 December 2008. Directors do
not have pension, retirement or similzr entitiements other than contributions to a money purchase pension scheme.

Benefits
Salary In Kind™® Bonuses Total 2008 Total 2007
£ 3 E E 3

Executive Directors
Dr. Michaed R, LYNCh.......oovve v vnninsarisesarssinaas 288,194 21,688 300,000 609,882 395,278
Sushovan HUSSAIN ............ccovvvevv e eemeeeereseeesinne 261,786 16,743 270,000 548,529 354,145
Non-executive Directors
Richard G. Gaunt.......conrv s 18,000 332 — 18,332 18,000
Barry M. Ariko @ .. 35,419 — - 35,419 24,994
John P. McMonigall..... 35,000 - — 35,000 30,000
Richard N. Pere@........cimimimnin s iscsoneens 35419 - - 35419 24,994

673,818 38,763 570,000 1,282,581 847,411

{1)  Amounts shown reflect the taxable benefit of company cars and private health insurance,
(2)  Messrs. Ariko and Perle’s remuneration of $70,000 (from 1 April 2008) has been translated into sterling.

2008 salaries for the CEQ and CFQ were approved by the Board in early 2008 based on performance during 2007, which inclueded record
profits up 60% from the prior year, and the fact that executive director compensation was amongst the lowest of similarly sized companies
despite extraordinary performance. The remainder of the increase in remuneration was the result of significant over-performance against
performance targets. CEOQ and CFO salaries in 2008 remained approximately 50% below the median base salaries of similarly sized
companies, despite the company's record performance significantly outpacing the market.

In 2008 each of Or Lynch and Mr Hussains' base salary and total remuneration remained significanlly below the salaries and total
remuneration of officers of similarly sized companies, according to salary surveys by Deloitte.

Non-executive directors are eniitled to be reimbursed for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in attending Board meetings
and committees thereof. No directors are entitled to reimbursement of non-business expenses, and all directors are subject to the
company's global expense policies. No director has a deferred bonus,

In connection with his services as a non-executive director of the BBC and blinkx Ple, during the year ended 31 December 2008 Dr, Lynch
received total remuneration of £35,000 and £35,000 {2007: £35,000 and £22555) from the BBC and blinkx, respectively. Or Lynch
performs these services independently of his duties fo the company and thus is entitled to receive such compensation.

Directors and their Interests
The directors who served during 2008, and their beneficial interests in company shares at the start and end of the year, were as follows:

Ordinary shares of 1/3p each as of 31 December

2008 2007
Executive
Dr. Michael R. Lynch....... 20,019,846 21,619,846
SUSHOVAN HUSSAIM .o vre ittt s et e scbssaras 5,945 5,945
Non-executive Directors
Richard G. GBUNL ..........ooeeereemriees et irrssesese et e ares 2672601 2,775,101
Barry M. Ariko........... — —
John P. McMonigall.... - -
RICRAIA N, PRIB......e.eoeeee ettt ettt ettt s eresmsnn - —_

(1) Includes 610,500 ordinary shares which are deemed reporiable.
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Remuneration Report

At year end Dr. Lynch had 2 non-beneficial interest in shares, as noted above. No other director had any non-beneficial interests in the
shares of the company at the end of the year. Aggregate emoluments disclosed above do nat include any amounts for the value of
options to acquire ordinary shares in the company granted {o or held by the directors.

Long-Term Incentive Plans
The group does not maintain any long term incentive plans.

Share Options

Details of share options granted to executive directors, all granted based on performance, are set out below. No executive directors’
share options were cancelled or lapsed, or changed, during the year. Vesting and exercise of options is subject to continued employment.
The principles underlying option grants are set forth on page 16.

Sushovan Hussain

At At Exercise Market Price Vesting First
1Jan 2008 Granted Exercised 31 Dec 2008 Price at Exercise Schedutet? Exercise®  Expiry Date
10,000 - {10,000} — £2.50 £10.18 4 year, 1 year dliff 01/11/02 3008
10,000 - - 10,000 £3.60 - 4 year, 1 year cliff 15/03/03 1405109
25,000 — — 25,000 £3.05 - 4 yaar, 1 year cliff 02/05/03 0105109
75,000 - {75,000) - £1.93 £10.45 3 year, & mon, ciiff 21105/04 201110
23000 - {25,000} — £1.97 £10.18 3 year, & mon, clif! 10/11/05 084511
100,000 — (100,000) - £149 £10.45 3 year, 5 mon. cliff 17006105 161211
50,000 — - 50,000 £2.29 - Jyear, 6 mon, clif  01/02/06 00712
30,000 - —_ 30,000 £4.25 - 3 year, 6 mon, ciiff 15111106 1400513
25,000 - - 25,000 £3.835 - 3 year, § mon. diff 11103107 10913
40,000 - - 40,000 £4.94 - 3 year, 6 mon. cliff 1206/07 11213
12,000 - - 12,000 £6.46 - 3 year, 6 mon. chiff 2909707 28103114
38,000 — - 38,000 £8.19 — 3 year, 6 mon. clifi 01/02/08 0714
45,000 - - 45,000 £8.61 - 3 year, § mon. cliff 19/08/08 18112114
4,000 - — 4,000 £Nil - 3 year, § mon, clift 18/06/08 1811214
- 35,000 - 35,000 £8.77 — 3 year, 6 mon. cliff  07/09/08 06/03115
- 35,000 - 35,000 £8.75 - 3 year, 6 mon. cliff 2412108 23106115
- 35,000 — 35,000 £10.30 — 3 year, 6 mon. cliff  08/02/09 07/0815
489,000 105,000 {210,000} 384,000
Michae! R. Lynch
Al Al Exercise Market Price Vesting First
1 Jan 2008 Granted Exercised 31 Dec 2008 Price at Exercise Schedulet Exercise®  Expiry Date
50,000 — - 50,000 £3.05 - 3 year, 6 mon. cliff 2203106 21109/12
30,000 - - 30,000 £4.25 - 3 year, 6 mon. ciiff 15411106 14105113
25,000 - - 25,000 £3.835 - 3 year, § mon. ciiff 1103107 10/09113
12,000 — — 12,000 £6.48 — 3 year, & mon. cliff 28105107 28103114
38,000 - - 38,000 £8.1% - 3 year, 6 mon. cliff 01102108 N4
45,000 — - 45,000 £8.61 — 3 year, § mon, cliff 19/06/08 18/12n4
4,000® - - 4,000 £Nil — 3 year, & mon, cliff 19/06/08 18/1214
- 35,000 —_ 35,000 £8.77 - 3 year, 6 mon, cifft  07/09/08 06/03/15
- 35,000 - 35,000 £8.75 - 3 year, 6 mon. ciiff 24112108 2310615
- 25,000 — 25,000 £10.30 — 3year, Gmon. clif  08/02/09 07/08/15
204,000 95,000 = 299,000

(1} Vesting schedule is either subject to performanca vesting, or over a period of three of four years with the first instalment exercisable after a "ciff” of either six months or
one year, After the initial tranche vesting, additional tranches vest in equal quartery instalments over the remainder of the vesting period,

{2) “First Exercise® represents the date of the vesting of the tnitial tranche when a smalf portion of the cptions become avallable for exercise.

{3}  Granted as a bonus following achievement of pre-determined acquisition mtegration targets.

As of the date of this report, no non-executive directors held share options. The Board does not intend to grant options {o non-executive
directors. Options are granted to all employees in the company on the same terms and at an exercise price equal to the fair market value
on the date of grant. The fair market value of the company's ordinary shares as quoted on the London Stock Exchange on 31 December
2008 {the last trading day of the year) was £9.51 per ordinary share, and the range during the year ended 31 December 2008 was from
£7.3010£11.78.

Pension entitlements

During 2006 the company established a matching pension scheme available {o all UK. employees with more than three years' service.
The scheme provides for the company to make a maiching contribution to an individual employee's pension, up to 3% of the individual's
base salary {only} per annum. OCther than this generally available benefit, the directors do not have pension, retirement or similar
entilements. Dr. Lynch and Mr. Hussain participated in the matching pension scheme during 2008 on the same terms available 1o all U.K.
employees, and matching contributions of £8,726 and £7,854 (2007: £7,500 and £6,750 respectively) were paid by the company.
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Former Direclors

No payments or awards were made to former directors during the year.

Company Secrefary
27 February 2003
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Corporate, Social and Environmental Responsibilities

The company endeavours to be honest and fair in its relationships with customers and suppliers, and io be a good corporate citizen
respecting the laws of the countries in which it operates. The company is accountable to its shareholders but also endeavours to consider
the interests of all of its stakeholders, including its employees, customers and suppliers, as well as the local communities and
environments in which the company operates. In this context the company takes regular account of the significance of social,
environmental and ethical matters to its operations as parl of its regular risk assessment procedures, with such matters regularly
considered by the executive directors.

Sushovan Hussain, Chief Financial Officer and Board Director, has been appointed by the Board as the director responsible for all matters
relating to carporate social, ethical, employment and environmental policies. This year, at Mr Hussain's recommendation management
renewed the company's ethica! policy, which sets forth the principles of proper conduct with regard to these matters.

The Board is committed to monitoring the company's corporate social respensibility policies in key areas. Management monitors the
company's day-to-day activities in order to assess risks in these areas and identify actions that may be taken to address those risks. At
present, the Board does not consider it appropriate to link the management of these risks to remuneration incentives, given the difficulties
in measuring the changes {o those risks objectively. Given the company's relatively small size and low social and envirenmental impact,
the company believes that there are few risks to its shorl and long term value proposition arising from these matters, although it considers
the potential to deliver greater value by responding to these issues appropriately. The Board believes the company has adequate
information to assess these matters, and effective systems for managing any risks, The company’s website includes a section dedicated
to corporate ethical, employment and environmental issues.

Whilst the Board considers that material risks arising from social, ethical, employment and environmental issues are limited, given the
nature of the company's business, policies have been adopted in key areas to ensure that such risks are limited. Examples of policies
and practices in these areas are given below.

Employment Policies

Autonomy employs approximately 1,200 people and in order {o continue fo grow as a business, the company needs to continue to recruit
and refain only the best talent. Therefore it is the company's policy lo pursue practices that are sensitive to the needs of its peopte. The
company sirives for equal opportunities for all of its employees, including disabled employees, and does not tolerate harassment of, or
discrimination against, its staff. The company’s priorities are:

+  Providing a safe workplace with equality of opportunity and diversily through our employment policies.

«  Encouraging our people to reach their full potential through career development and promotion from within where possible.

«  Communicating openly and transparently within the bounds of commercial confidentiality, whilst listening to our people and
taking into account their feedback.

s Recognizing and rewarding our people for their contribution and encouraging share ownership at all levels.

The company respects the rule of law within all jurisdictions in which it operates and supports appropriate internationally accepted
standards including those on human rights. The company's equal opportunities policies prohibit discrimination on grounds such as race,
gender, religion, sexual orientation or disability. This policy includes, where practicable, the continued employment of those who may
become disabled during their employment. The company's policies strive to ensure that all decisions about the appointment, treatment
and promotion of employees are based entirely on merit, and continued development of the company is made with the maximem
involvement and input from employees practicable.

Employees with Disabilities

The company's policy is to give full and fair consideration to suitable applications from people with disabifities for employment. If existing
employees become disabled they will continue to be employed, wherever practicable, in the same job or, ii this is not practicable, every
effort will be made to find suitable altemative employment and {0 provide appropriate training.

Environmental Policies

It is the company's policy to ensure, by encouraging environmental best practice in the business, that its operations have as little
environmental impact as is consistent with its business needs. The effect on the enviranment of the company's activities are monitored,
where appropriate, with regard to the low overall environmental impact of its primary activities as a software publisher. As a developer of
software the company has no manufacturing facilities and its premises are composed exclusively of offices. Staff make use of computers
to generate intellectual property. This involves neither hazardous substances nor complex waste emissions. The vast majonty of the
company's sales comprise software that is normally delivered electronically to customers. Outmoded office equipment and computers are
resold or recycled to the extent practicable.

The company recognises the increasing importance of environmental issues and these are discussed at Board level if appropriate. A
number of initiatives continued in 2008. An environmental action plan is implemented at group and departmental leve! through various
initiatives. These include monitoring resource consumplion and waste creation so that when targets are set for improvement they are
realistic and meaningfu!, ensuring existing controls continue to operate satisfactorily and working with suppliers to improve environmental
management along the supply chain. The company has recycling facilities in ali of its primary offices, and waste paper is minimised by
promoting paperless processes and downloadable software products. Renewable energy sources are also being investigated. The
provision of cycle sheds, showers and changing facilities at the company's Cambridge, San Francisco, Pleasanton, Munich and Dallas
offices facilitate greener commuting, and the extensive provision of telephone and video conferencing equipment offer an altemnative o
international trave!, where appropriate. The company's environmental policy is published on its website.
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Corperate, Social and Environmental Responsibilities

As noted above, the company monitors key consumption indicators, most effectively at its headquarters in Cambridge, UK where it has
the largest number of employees. The following chart sets forth comparafive consumngpition for the past two years, measured versus the
company's revenues during those periods:

Tons CO2 per $m Revenue

2008 2007

Enemy use.......... . 4.40 5.04
SUPPHET WALET [M3} ... aeeeiecreasmenrs s resees e s ecene s rens e et bR S 1 10.44 1375

Ethical Business Practices

Autonomy is a software development and sales company based in the UK with overseas sales and developmen! operations. Autenomy
does not have manufacturing operations. A employees are expecied to behave ethically when working for the company and this is
reflected in our policies which are detafled in the staff handboak.

Charitable Policies

The company maintains a number of charitable giving policies. The company's core philanthropic foundation under the corporate
commitment program is education. The company also annually buagets for specific charitable requests from individual staff members, in
areas where the company has an opporiunity to make 2 significant and measurable impact in the non-profii seclor. The company's
matching gift programme matches employee donations to non-profit organizations meeting the company's requirements for charitable
donations. Finally, the company permits employees to volunteer a cerlain number of hours of paid time per year to the charity of their
choice provided that the charitable organization meets the company’s general requirements for charitable donations. Last year, under
these schemes donations and sponsorships totalled over $150,000.

The company aclively encourages every employee to work together to meet the requirements of all of the above poficies,

er of the Board,

Andrew M Kanier
Company Secretary
27 February 2009
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Remuneration Report and the finandial statements in accordance with
applicable laws and regulalions. The directors are required to prepare financial statements for the group in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the European Union and have also elected to prepare financial statements for the
company in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Union. Company law requires the directors to prepare such financial
statements in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and Asticle 4 of the JAS Regulation.

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present faidy for each financial year the company's financial
position, financial perfformance and cash flows. This requires the faithful representation of the effects of ransactions, other events and
conditions in accordance with the definifions and recognition criteria for assels, liabilities, income and expenses set out in the International
Accounting Standards Board's ‘Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements”. In virtually all circumstances, a
fair presentation will be achieved by compliance with &l applicable International Financial Repoerting Standards. Direclors are also
reguired to;

=  properly select and apply accounting palicies;

= present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information; and

« provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRS is insufficient to enable users fo
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial
performance.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any lime the financial
position of the company, for safeguarding the assets, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other
imegularities and for the preparation of a directors’ report and directors’ remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 1985.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the company website. Legistation in the United Kingdom governing the
preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

We confirm to the best of our knowledge:

1. the financial statements, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopied by the EU, give a
true and fair view of the assets, liahilities, financial position and profit of the company and the underakings included in the
consolidation taken as a whole; and

2 the management seport, which is incorporated info the directors' repor, includes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a
whole, fogether with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties they face.

On behalf of the Board,

A7

Dr. Michael R. Lynch
Chief Exacutive Cfficer and Co-Founder
27 February 2009

Registered Office: Cambridge Business Park, Cowley Road, Cambridge CB4 0W2
Registered Number: 3175809
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Autonomy Corporation plc

We have audited the consolidated and parent company financial statements {the "financial statemenis™) of Autonomy Corporation plc for
the year ended 31 December 2008, which comprise the Consolidated Income Statement, the Consclidated and Parent Company Balance
Sheets, the Consolidated and Parent Company Cash Flow Statements, the Conselidated and Parent Company Statements of Changes in
Equity, the consolidated related notes 1 to 29 and the parent company related notes 1 to 10. These financial statements have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therein. We have also audited the information in the Remuneration Repert that is
described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the company’'s members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Companies Act 1985. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those malters we are required to state to them in an
auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsibilities for preparing the Annual Report, the Direclors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and Infernational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union are set outin
the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities.

QOur responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

We report to you our opinion as io whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial statements and the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and,
as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation. We also report to you whether in our opinion the information
given in the Directors' Report is consistent with the financial statements. The information given in the Directors’ Report includes that
specific information presented in the Financial Review and the financial results section of the letter from the CEQ that is cross referred
from the Enhanced Business Review section of the Direciors’ Report.

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if information specified by law regarding directors' remuneration and other
transactions is not disclosed.

We review whether the Corporate Govemance Statement reflects the company's compliance with the nine provisions of the 2006
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authority, and we report if it does not. We are not
required to consider whether the board's statements on internal control cover all risks and contrals, or form an opinion on the effectiveness
of the group's corporate governance procedures of its risk and controf procedures.

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as described in the contents section and consider whether it is consistent
with the audited financial statemenis. We consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent misstatements or
material inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our responsibilities do not extend to any further information outside the Annual
Report.

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices Board.
An audit includes examination, on a fest basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements and the
part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made
by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate o the group's and
company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as 10 obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order to
provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In ferming our opinion we
also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements and the part of the Directors'
Remuneration Report to be audited.

Opinion
In our opinion:

« the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, of the
state of the group's affairs as at 31 December 2008 and of its profit for the year then ended;

e the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Union as applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the parent company's affairs as
at 31 December 2008;

» the financial statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and, as regards the group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation; and

= the information given in the Directors’ Report is consistent with the financial statements.
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Separate opinion in relation to IFRSs
As explained in Note 2 to the group financial statements, the group in addition to complying with its legal obligation to comply with IFRSs
as adopted by the European Union, has also complied with the IFRSs as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. 1

In ur opinion the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs, of the state of the group's affairs as at
31 December 2008 and of its profit for the year then ended.
C

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Cambridge, England
27 February 2009
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Consolidated Income Statement for the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Note $'000 $°000
Continuing operaticns
RBVBMUB.........ocvoeeeeese et eeee e emeeemass e e ass o hr bbb r e E st bt 34 503,229 343,409
Cost of revenues (excl. amortisation) ... (45,038) (39,107)
Amortization of purchased intangibles {19,489) {12,955)
COSEOf TEVENUES . oooocrvvcvvcvsre s sss s ssresssrsssss s st o et ssssns oo (64,527) {52,062}
GIOSS PIOML.vovvvvvvvvvesnisssssiiss e ssesssssssrass s esss s esssssas e sssss s 438,702 291,347
Research and development... (78,410} {62,341}
Sales and marketing .............. (135,159) (104,437}
General and administrative (42,624} (32,536}
OHher COSES oo et
Post-acquisition restructuring COStS ... e 5 (1,157} (1,757)
Impairment Of INVESIMBNLS ....vvee et et eneses - (1,026)
Gain (loss) on foreign exchange... 5141 {601)
Total operating CostS...........vimessriienien (252,209) {202,698)
Profit from operations.... 5 186,493 88,649
Share of loss of associate.. 14 (2,196) (1,673)
Interest receivable................ 8 3,353 6,914
Interest payable on bank loan.... {1,943) {2.443)
Profit before taX........coovernes 185,707 91,447
9 (53,958) (28,982)
131,749 62,465
10 0.61 0.31
10 0.61 0.30
Reconciliation of Non-IFRS Financial Measures
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Gross profit..... 438,702 291,347
Amortisation of purchased |ntang|btes 19,489 12,955
Gross profit {adjusted)* ... 458,191 304,302
Profit BEfOre taX........oce ettt bt 185,707 91,447
(Gain) loss on foreign exchange................ (5,141) 601
Amortization of purchased intangibles 19,489 12,955
Impairment of investments........c..c.ccccevne. — 1,026
Share of 1088 Of BSSOCIATE.............coo e et bbbt par b e sr e e 2,196 1,673
Share-based COMPENSALION ..o et b st saea st b bt s sr st are 5,484 3,786
Post acquisition restructuring costs ... 1,167 1,757
Profit before tax {adjusted)* ............... 208,892 113,245
PLOVISION FOF EAX ...ooo.ece ettt seee s enss e s sas st st s s bbb 4 bbb EEsaE e (60,891} (36,008)
Net Profit (AUIUSIEA) .....vv e b s e s 148,001 77,237
Profit from operations.... 186,493 88,645
(Gain) loss on foreign exchange......... v (5,141} 601
Amortization of purchased intangibles... 19,489 12,865
Share-based compensation.... 5484 3,786
Post-acquisition restructuring oosts ................................................................. 1,157 1,757
Impairment of INVESIMENES........corvv e e e e e eens e — 1,026
Profit from operations (BAJUSEA)" ...t senes s e s 207,482 108,774

! Non-IFRS financial measures are used to calculate “adjusted” results discussed throughout the Annual Report.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet at 31 December 2008

Non-current assels
Other mtanglhle asseks......
Property, plant and equtpment ......
Equity and other investments...
Deferrad 18K A5SBL ..oeor e s
TOHA] RON-CUITENE BSSEIS cvvvvvvrrrvs e crsre s srrsreacessbsras e e sers e sssras s snsserararenees
Current assets

Trade and other rECEIVADIES ................oco et sr e e e e sass e
Inventories....

Cash and cash equwalents .
TOLA CUITENE BSSELS ..cvcvrieeeete et b r b sa s st bbb

TOlE BSERES ...covvovvrrevs v rrnss e s e b st et R e saen e

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
BAAK IO ......cocoverris e s ssbasssrs b s aar e
Tax Isabt!mes ............ e eeaet et et e e
Deferred revenue.....

PIOVISIONS. .....covrreiresrerssssreserseesserssssssssss s ssbsssa st esse st s vesm s seas e vas st ms st sese s s ssesne s

NEE CUITENE BSOS ... .ot b e e sr o

Nen-current liabilities

Bank loan ... et ereeeema ettt e a s e bt s et et s eesnin s eere st se s a s et et
Deferred tax Ilablllties

Deletred revenue........
CHhEr PAYADIES.....c. .ottt e cr s b srs s st e
PIOVISIONS. .....cvovreverssss st snrsa et sess s senemae st ees st st e s st st ss s e senss e snensss s sons st st

TOtAHIEDIEIES crevevoemoevee oot eceemv s st s et ssrne st et se b ssasnar st pessssts
NELASSBES ..ottt et b e sss s s ereeee ot mes s ettt st et s e

Shareholders’ equity

Share Capital ..o s ettt renten
SHAre PIEMILIM BCECOUNY .._......eruieie sttt vesmsss s se s sans s srsss bbb e
Capital redemption reserve..
Own shares ...
Merger reserve.. -
Stock compensatlon TESBIVE....o.ucrumcresirraercansesses e sesssesssessones s batabessesra bbbt sm s snseees
Revaluation reserve..
TIANSIAHON TESEIVE ......ouerie s eronse s sers e mscrt s vcs s sen s s s s s et et
Retained earnings...
TORBL BGUILY ...o.cceencrmsccmrccnrn s s ecreses s seses s secss s s s s e en e

2008

2007

$'000

$'000

17
18

19

18
20

21

22

796,632
98,694
27,350

7.441
13,467

820,147
113,956
28,788
20,010
8,862

943,584

991,763

176,806
715
199,218

131,487
583
92,571

376,739

224 641

1,320,323

1,216,404

(31,945)
(10,637}
(27.905)
(89,794)

{426)

(40,969)
{10,636)
{20,118)
(77 491)

(1,099)

(160.707)

(150,315)

216,032

74,375

(26,594)
(2,537}
{9.414)
(1.471)

(37.231)

(20.389)
(9,899)
(257)

(39,716}

(67,776)

(200,423)

(218,091)

1,119,500

998,313

1,214
798,279
135
(505)
27,589
14,846
2,987
(18.261)
294,016

1,196
780,888
135
(981)
77,589
9,438
10,183
23,801
145,084

1,419,800

998,313

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 27 February 2009. They were signed on its

behalf by:

Dr. Michael R. Lynch
Chief Executive Officer and Co-Founder
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2008

Capital
redemption
Share capital Share capital  Share premium reserve Own shares  Merger reserve Sub-total

{number) §'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Al 1 January 2007 ... 187,836,204 1,027 474,645 135 (1.017) — 474790
Retained profit .................... —_ - - — - - -
Stock compensation charge.......... - - - —_ - — —_
Share options exercised...... 4,192,959 29 22,618 — — — 22647
Share placings......oovve... 21,037,157 140 283,625 — — 27,589 311,354
EBT options exercised ........ . — -— — - 36 - 36
Deferred tax on share options........ - - — — — — —
Translation of overseas ops .......... - — —_ — - — -
Revaluation of equity investment - - - — - - -
Al 31 December 2007 .........ccce... 213,086,320 1,196 780,888 135 {981) 27,589 808,827
Retained profit .... — — - — - — -
Stock compensahon ¢h arge .......... - - - - - - —
Share options exercised............... 2,750,877 18 17,391 — - — 17,409
EBT options exercised ..........c..... — — — — 76 - 76
Deferred tax on share options....... - — - — - - -
Translation of overseas ops .......... — -_ - — — — —
Revaluation of equity investment = — - — - - -
At 31 December 2008 ............... 215,817,197 1,214 798,279 135 {905) 27,589 826,312

Stack
compensation  Revaluation Translation Retaining

Sub-total reserve reserve reserve earnings Total

§'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
At 1January 2007 ... oo 474,790 5,688 - 19,956 71,188 571,622
Retained profit.........c..coco...n. . - - — — 62465 62,465
Stock compensation charge..........co e rrrrrnerne - 3,786 — —_ — 3786
Share options exercised.......c..cvvrirnrerivsrnerns 22,647 — —_ —_ — 22,647
Share placing ... - 31,354 - — - — 311,354
EBT options e 36 (36) — — — —
Deferred tax on share options .........cuvmn — — — — 12,431 12431
Translation of OVErseas ops .......coeveeeeevcievvveeenennnne - - — 3,845 — 3845
Revaluation of equity mveslmem. ...... - — 10,163 — — 10,163
At 31 December 2007 ... 808,827 9438 10,163 23,801 146,084 998,313
Retained profit......c.o e e, — — — - 131,749 131,749
Stock compensation Charge ........cooevcerrveerrrercennns — 5484 — — — 5,484
Share options exercised.........cooee i 17,409 - — — — 17,409
EBT options exercised ............ 76 (786) - - - -
Deferred tax on share options ...........c.cccccovvervenennee — — — — 16,183 16,183
Translation of overseas ops ........cvvvieinnn: - - — {42,062 - {42,062)
Revaluation of equity investment ........................... — = (7.176) - — {7.176)
At 31 December 2008 ...........coooeerevoerrvcccrrcsenn 826,312 14,846 2,987 {18,261) 294,016 1,119,800
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2008

Net cash from operating etivities............oini e
Investing activities
IMEreStIBCAIVE .......co e e
Proceeds on disposal of praperty, plant and equipment...........cvvvvveceeronns
Purchases of property, plant and equipment...........conernccsceneennns
Investment in joint venture, associates and equity investments.
Expenditure on product development........c..cc v
Acquisition of subsidiaries {net of cash acquired) ..o
Net cash used in investing actiVIIEs ... s
Financing activiies
Proceeds from issuance of Sharas ... eecns s
Interest on bank loan ..........cocoeve
Repayment of Dank 10an............ccoi et
Drawdown of Dank 08N ... sen s essninns
Net cash from financing activities .........o..ooooeervevrereiennn.
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ... covvvnionienorns
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year............
Effect of foreign exchange rate Changes ...t

Cash and cash equivalents af end of YEar...........ovmi e s

29

2008 2007
Note $7000 $'000
23 146,336 52,459
3,321 6,914
- 366
(14,285} {11,329)
(2,327} (6,820)
(11,159) (6,942)
(6,226) (360,760)
(30,676) (398.571)
17,409 307,133
(1,943) (2,442)
(10,700} (48,683)
— 28,762
4,766 784,770
120,426 (31,342)
92,571 124,059
(13,779) 2,854
199,218 92,571
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. General information

Autonomy Corporation plc is a company incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 1985. The registered office is at
Autonomy House, Cambridge Business Park, Cowley Road, Cambridge CB4 OWZ, UK. The nature of the group's operations and its
principal aclivities are set out on page 10.

The company's functional currency is sterling as that is the curmency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates.
The presentational currency is dollars as that is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the group operates. Foreign
operations are included in accordance with the policies set out in note 2,

Adoption of new and current standards
Three interpretations issued by the interational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee are effective for the current period. These

are IFRIC 11 IFRS2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions; IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements; and IFRIC 14 1AS 19 The
Limit of a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction. The adoption of these interpretations has not led
to any changes in the Group's accounting policies.

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have net been applied in
these financial statements were in issue but not yet effective:

IFRS 1 (revised) First Time Adoption of IFRS
Amendments to IFRS 2 Vesting conditions and cancellations
IFRS 3 (revised) Business Combinations
IFRS 8 Operating segments
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Invesiment in a Foreign Operation
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Custorners
1AS 1 {revised) Presentation of Financial Instrumenis
1AS 23 (revised) Borrowing Costs
Amendments to I1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
IAS 32 (amended)/IAS 1 (amended) Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendments to |AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement:
Eligible Hedged ltems
Amendments to IAS 39 Reclassification of Financial Assets: Effective Date and Transition

The directors anticipate that the adaption of these Standards and Inferpretations in future periods will have no material impact on the
financial statements of the group, except for additional segment disclosures when IFRS 8 comes into effect for periods commencing on or
after 1 January 2009.

2. Significant accounting policies
a)  Basis of accournting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs). The financial
statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by the European Union and therefore the group financial
statemenits comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of equity investiments and financial
instruments. The principal accounting policies adopled by the company are set out below.

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements, as described in more detail on page 11.
b}  Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and entities controlled by the company {its
subsidiaries, together the *Group"} made up to 31 December each year. Control is achieved where the company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to obtain benefits from ils activiies.

On acquisition, the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of a subsidiary are measured at their fair values at the date of acquisition.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assels acquired is recognised as goodwill. Any deficiency
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant accounting poficies (continued)

of the cost of acquisition below the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired (i.e. discount on acquisition) is credited to profit and
loss in the period of acquisition. The interest of minority shareholders is stated at the minority’s proportion of the fair values of the assels

and liabiliies recognised. Subsequently, any losses applicable to the minority interest in excess of the minority interest are allocated
against the interests of the parent.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the effective
date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
staterents of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by the group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
¢} Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the group is in a position to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint control, through
participation in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee butis not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting
except when classified as held for sale (see below). Investments in associates are carried in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by
post-acquisition changes in the group’s share of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of individual
investments, Losses of the associates in excess of the group's interest in those associates are not recognised. Any excess of the cost of
acquisition over the group's share of the fair values of the ideniifiable net assets of the associate at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the group's share of the fair values of the identifiable net assets of the associate
at the date of acquisition {i.e. discount on acquisition} is credited in profit or loss in the pericd of acquisition. Where a group company
transacts with an associate of the group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the group's interest in the relevant associate.
Losses may provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred in which case appropriate provision is made for impairment.

d)  Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the group's interest in the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is recognised as
an asset and reviewed for impairment at least annually. Any impairment is recognised immediately in profit or loss and is not
subsequently reversed. On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity, the atiributable amouni of goodwill is included in
the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when therg is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the canying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognized
for goodwilt is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to LFRS has been retained at the previous US GAAP amounts subject lo
being tested for impairment at the date of transition to IFRS.

e/ Revenue recognilion

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represenis amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales taxes.

The group generates revenues from licensing the rights to use its software products directly to end-users and indirectly through resale by
resellers. The group also generates revenues from hosted services, sales of consulting, customer support and training services
performed for customers that licence its products. Revenues from software licence agreements are recognised where there is persuasive
evidence of an agreement with a customer {contract and/or binding purchase order), defivery of the software has taken place, collectability
is probable and the fee is fixed and determinable.  an acceptance period is required, revenues are recogrised upon the earlier of
customer acceptance or the expiration of the acceptance period. Revenue is recognized on contracts providing that the customer passes
defined credit-worthiness checks. If significant post-delivery obligations exist or if a sale is subject to customer acceptance, revenues are
deferred until no significant obligations remain or acceptance has occurred.

Tha group enters into reseller arrangements tha typically provide for fees payable to the group based on agreed discounted license rates.
Sales are generally recognised as reported by the reseller in resale of the group's products to end-users. Sales are recognised if all
products subject to resale are delivered in the current period, no right of retum policy exists, collection is probable and the fee is fixed and
determinable, The group also enters into OEM agreements that may provide for the payment of advance license royalties and ongoing
license royalty obligations. In cestain circumstances, advance royalties are recognised upon the initial contract if all products subject to
sub-licensing are defivered in the current period, no right of retum policy exists, collection is probable and the fee is fixed and
determinable.
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Notes to the Consclidated Financial Statements

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenues from hosted services are separated, using the residual methed, info capture and data restoration services and archival
services, Revenues for capture and data restoration are recognised in the period in which they are defivered. Revenues for archival
services are recognised over the term of the service.

Revenues from customer support services are recognised rateably over the term of the support period. If customer support services are
included free or at a discount in a licence agreement, these amounts are allocated out of the license fee at their fair market value based
on the value established by independent sale of the customer support services {o customers.

Consulting revenues are primarily refated to implementation services performed on a time and materials basis under separable service
arrangements related to the installation of the group's software products. Revenues from consulting and training services are recognised
as services are performed. If a transaction includes both license and service elements, licence fee revenue is recognised upan shipment
of the software, provided services do not include significant customisation or modification of the base product and the payment terms for
licenses are not subject to acceptance criteria. In cases where licence fee payments are contingent upon the acceptance of services,
revenues from both the licence and the service elements are deferred until the acceptance ciiteria are met.

Cost of licence revenues includes the cost of royallies due on third party ficences, cost of product media, product duplication and manuals.
Oeferred revenues primarily relate to archival services and customer support fees, which have been invoiced 1o the customer prior to the
performance of these services. Deferred revenue is generally recognised over a period of one to three years.

) Leasing
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
g} Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity concerned are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated into US. dollars at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-manetary assets and liabilities carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Gains and
losses arising on retranslation are included in net profit or loss for the period, except for exchange differences arising on non-monetary
assets and fabilities where the changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the group's overseas operations are ranstated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Income and expense ilems are iranslated at the average exchange rates for the period unless exchange rates fluctvate
significantly. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the group's translation reserve. Such
translation differences are recognised as income or as expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are denominated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.

h)  Profit rom gperations

Profit from operations is stated before investment income and finance costs.

i Taxation

The ax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance
sheet liability method. Defered tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination} of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiafies and associates, and
interests in joint ventures, except where the group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foereseeable future,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable prefits will be available to allow all or part of the assef to be recovered,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rafes that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is sefiled or the asset is realised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current lax assets against current fax
liabilities, and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority, and the group intends to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Al Propety, plani and equipment
Leasehold improvements, fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of assets, other than land and properties under construction, over their estimated useful
lives, using the siraight-line methed, on the following bases:

Leasehold improverents  Over shorter of economic useful life and lease term
Fixtures and equipment  Over 3-5 years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or refirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the assel and is recognised in income.

& Imemally-generated intangible assels - research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is ingurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from the group's product development is recognised only if all of the following conditions
are met:

- an assel is created that can be identified {such as software and new processes);

- itis probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits;

- the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably; and

- the product from which the asset arises meets the group's criteria for technical feasibility.

Internatly-generated intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful lives, which is 3 years. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

I} Other intangible assels excluding goodwil

Other intangible assets excluding goodwill are measured initially at purchase cost and are amartised on a straight-ling basis over their
estimated useful lives, on the following bases: '

Patents and trademarks 3 years
Software licences Jyears
Purchased inlangibles 3-12 years,

m}  Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance shest date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit fo which the asset belongs,

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

I the recoverable amount of an asset {or cash-generating unil) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the camying amount of the
asset (cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit} is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised as income immediately, unless the refevant asset is caried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

n})  Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
o}  Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the group will be
required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure required to seitle the
obligation at the balance sheet date, and are discounted {o present value where the effect is material.

p}  Share-based payments

The group has applied the requirements of IFRS 2 Share-based Payments. In accordance with the transitional provisions, IFRS 2 has
been applied to all grants of equity instruments after 7 November 2002 that were unvested as of 1 January 2004.

The group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees. Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair
value al the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-setlled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the group's estimate of shares that will eventually vest. Fair value is measured by
use of a Black Scholes model.

g} Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the group’s balance sheet when the group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial Assets

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value,
plus transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair
value,

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss’ (FVTPL}), ‘held-to-
maturity’ investments, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS} financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and
purpese of the financial assels and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period, The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts {including all fees on points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debi instruments ather than those financial assets designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FYTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL where the financial asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL
A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

= it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

+ itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

« itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upen initial recognition if:

«  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

«  the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial fiabilities or bath, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the group's documented risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the group is provided internally on that basis; or

« it forms part of a coniract containing one or more embedded derivalives, and 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined coniract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL,

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest eamed on the financial asset. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 27.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Available for sale financial assels

Unlisted shares and listed redeemable notes held by the group that are traded in an active market are classified as being AFS and are
stated at fair value. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 27. Gains and losses arising fiom changes in fair value are
recognised directly in equity in the investments revaluation reserve with the exception of impaiment losses, interest calculated using the
effective interest method and foreign exchange gains and lesses on monetary assets, which are recognised drrectly in profit or loss.

Where the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in the investments
revaluation reserve is included in profit or loss for the period.

Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the group’s right to receive the dividends is established.

The fair value of AFS monetary assets denominated in a foreign cumrency is determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot
rale at the balance sheet date, The change in fair value atfributable to transtation differences that result from a change in amortised cost of
the asset is recognised in profit or loss, and other changes are recognised in equily.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as loans and receivables, Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are

impaired where there is objeclive evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.

For shares classified as AFS, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its costis considered to be objective
evidence of impairment. For all other financial assets, including redeemable notes classified as AFS and finance lease receivables,
objective evidence of impairment could include:

« significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or
«  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or
« it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not fo be impaired individually are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the pertfolio past the average credit
period of 60 days, as well as observable changes in national or loca! economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financia!l assefs with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

With the exception of AFS equily instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment 0s$ is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of AFS equity securities, impairment losses previously recognised through profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised directly in equity.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other shori-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Derecoqnition of financial assets
The group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire; or it transfers the

financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another enfity. If the group neither transfers nor
retaing substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues lo contro! the transferred assel, the group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial assel, the group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabifities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
All financial fiabilities are classified as ‘other financial liabilities’.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabitiies, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transacticn costs. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocaling interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial liabilifies
The group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Derivative financia! instruments
The group does not use derivative financial instruments.

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
a)  Critical judgements in applying the group’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the group's accounting policies, which are described in note 2, management have made the following
judgements that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements {apart from those involving
estimations, which are discussed below).

Revenue recognition
There are no significant judgements which management consider have a material impact on the financial statements. The accounting
policy set out in note 2 has been followed with no significant judgements required to be made.

b)  Key sources of estimation uncertainly

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheel date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below,

Recoverability of infernally generated intangible assets

During the year $11.2 million (2007: $6.9 million) of internally generated intangible assets were capitalised as required in accordance with
IAS 38. Management have assessed expecited revenues to be generated from these assets and deemed that no adjustment is required
fo the carrying value of the assets,

Impaimment of goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating nits {CGU) to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows of the CGU and a suitable discount
rale in order to calculate present value. The carrying amount of goodwil al the balance sheel date was $756.6 million
(2007: $820.1 million).

Trade receivables

The directors consider that the camying amount of trade receivables approximates their fair value. A provision has been made for
estimated unrecoverable amounts based on information available to management. Changes in collectabllity of trade receivables may
impact the level of provision required.
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4. Segmental analysis

Whilst the group currently operates under a number of different divisions, the group’s core technotogy, types of revenue and associated
costs and returns are comparable. Each of these divisions is founded on the group's unigue Intelligent Data Operating Layer, the group's
core infrastructure for automating the handling of all forms of unstructured information.  As a result, the group maintains only one
reportable business segment, as is reflected in the reporting in this annual report.

The group's operations are located primarily in the United Kingdem, the US and Canada. The company also has a significant presence in
a number of other European couniries as well as China, Japan, Singapore and Australia. The following table provides an analysis of the
group's sales by geographical market based on the location of the group’s customers.

Revenue by geographical market

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
AITIBIICAS ...vevsveesissiresenssesssressensssrssconsessissesvessees fosesbsese baia s ssscR8 a8 et b o8 Eer s R e £t s e s s enae L b b0 324,287 211,119
RESTOFWOTIA ... eos et et e e S b5 s 5 £ b6 e RE s bt et 178,942 132,290
503,229 343,409
Segment information about these geographical segments is presented below:
Result 2008 2007
Americas ROW Total Americas ROW Total
5'000 $'000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Segment result........c.cceerninnn. 139,104 43,405 162,509 66,006 26,027 92,033
Post-acq'n restructuring
COSS ..oev et (1,157) (1,757}
Impairment of investment....... — (1,026}
Gain (loss) on foreign exch.... 5141 (601)
Profit from operations............. 186,493 88,649
Share of loss of associate...... (2,196} (1,673}
Interest receivable................. 3,353 6,914
Interest payable ... (1,943) (2,443)
Profit before tax 185,707 01,447
TAX o {53,958) (28,982)
Profit for the period ................ 131,749 62,465
Other Information 2008 2007
Americas ROW Total Americas ROW Total
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Prop., plant & equip. add's..... 13,340 945 14,285 8741 2,588 11,329
Purchased intangible add's ... - — — 71,200 6,472 77672
Other intangible asset add’s .. 7,831 3,328 11,159 5404 1,538 6,942
Depreciation...........ccooeevvennn, 12,539 1,556 14,095 7578 1,120 8,698
AMOrtiSation ........cc.ceeverveenens 21,038 3,215 24,313 1,783 13,530 15,313
Balance Sheet
Segment assets ..o, 417,742 104,130 521,872 260,826 131,522 392,348
Interests in asscciates 1,819 3,909
Goodwill .........co..coevvveins 796,632 820,147
Consolidated total assets....... 1,320,323 1,216,404
Segment liabilities .........ovies {146,447) (53,976) (200,423) {150,373} (67,718} (218,091)
Unallocated corp. liabilities ... — -
Consolidated total liabilities.... {200,423} {218,091}

3r Autonomy Corporation plc




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

5. Profit from operations

Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

2008 2007
$°000 $000
Net foreign exchange (Qains) I0SSBS......ccooc. v st s e s sses s st (5,141) 601
Research and development costs
Expensed in income statement... 78,410 62,341
Depreciation of property, plant and eqmpmem charged in operatmg expenses (see note 13) 14,095 8,698
Amortisation of intangibles charged in cost of sales (see note 12} ... 19,489 12,955
Amortisation of intangibles charged in uperating expenses (see note 12) . 4,824 2,358
Staff costs (see note 7).... 159,877 133,385
Post acquisition restructunng oosls (see below) 1,157 1,757
Auditors' remuneration for audit services (see note 6) 1,153 962

The post acquisition restructuring costs relate to redundancy payments and related costs in relation to reductions in force following the
acquisition of ZANTAZ, ine. and Meridio Holdings Lid.

6. Auditors’ remuneration

A more detailed analysis of auditors’ remuneration on a worldwide basis is as follows:

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Fees payable to the company's auditors for the audit of the company's annual acCounts ........ccoeevennnee. 526 599
Fees payable to the company's auditors and their associates for other services to the group
audit of the company's subsidiaries pursuant (0 IegiSIation...........corrremrimiirms s mnes 627 363
TOMA! BUOILFBES ... cveis et st s e bt st st b P e b ases Hea bbbttt 1,183 962
other services pursuant to legislation.. 284 599
tAX SEIVICES ..oooovveve e erene e eraees 280 190
COTPOTAtE fINANGE SEIVICES .....voivieiiss i s s bbb bbb s st b 623 491
TOtAl NOM-AUAI BB ...t era e bs e b bkt s 0s s st 1,187 1,280

A description of the work of the audit committee is set out in the corporate governance statement beginning on page 13 and includes an
explanation of how auditor objectivity and independence is safeguarded when non-audit services are provided by the auditors. The
corporate finance fees in 2008 related to due diligence work in connection with the proposed acquisition of Interwoven, Inc.

7.  Staff costs

The average menthly number of employees {including executive directors} was:

2008 2007
{rumber) {number)

Administration and MaNAGEMENL ...t ssare s e s sss et s 137 118
Technical personnel................ 853 719
58188 AN MATKEHNG ....ovvs e e es b st s tr s E R r a8 b e 258 294
1,248 1,131

Aggregate remuneration comprised: $'000 $'000
Wages and salaries 147,255 124,304
Social security costs .., 11,692 8,393
PEINSION COSLS ... rvcorrvesrreree e vt seeass e ettt est s nes s e e bbb b bt et 930 688
159,877 133,385
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8. Interest receivable

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
IHETESt ON DANK GEPOSIS ..vvv.ivveisissens s e erm st e senst e e sens bbb bbbt s st et 3,353 6,914

Total revenue for the group including revenue from sale of goods and interest receivable is $506.6 million {2007: $350.3 million}

9. Tax
2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Current tax:
Current year 53,252 30,634
PHIOT YBEF 1.vuvvavsietiescireasrsnssr e sessessrsee s e G888 bbb b b B bbb et (1,539) —
51,713 30634
Deferred tax:
CUITEIE YBAI ....1voevvncvesersienscacs e reensseneseses s et e s ensersaesmsse s ek b esh 4408 AL B b AR SRR B ab B 110 2,245 (1,652)
53,958 28,982

UK Corporation tax is calculated at 28.5% (2007: 30%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation for other jurisdictions is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit as set forth in the
income statement as follows:

2008 2007
$'000 % $'000 %

Profit Bafore ... e 185,707 91,447

Tax at UK corporation tax rate of 28.5% (2007: 30%)....cccverevevrns 52926 28.5% 27434 30.0%
Tax effect of exp. not deductible in determining taxable profit ...... 627 0.3% 400 0.4%
Research and Development tax credits ..o {428) (0.2%) (450} (0.5%)
Current tax ben. of utilisation of tax losses not prev. recognized .. (3,617} (1.9%} — —
Other timing differences..........ooeericricen e 2,798 1.5% — -
Effect of different tax rates of subs operahng in other Junsdlctlons 3191 1.7% 1,598 1.8%
Prior year adjustment.... S {1,539) {0.8%) - -
Tax expense and ef'fecuve tax rate for the year ............................. 53,958 29.1% 28,982 7%

10, Earnings per share

The calcuation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following data:

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted earnings per share being net profit ..........cccvencerincans 131,749 62,465
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share................. 214,523 201,252
Effect of dilutive polentxal ordmary shares:
Share options.... 2,635 3973
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of diluted eamings per share............... 217,158 205,225

Basic and diluted earnings per share (adjusted) of $0.69 and $0.68 respectively (2007: $0.38 for both measures) is calculated by dividing
the net profit (adjusted) amounts shown on page 26 by the share denominators shown above.
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11, Goodwill

$°000
Cost
AL T JANUANY 2007 ..o sersessmesaie st e ssses s esseesesss et s e 541048 880 £ R A B 418 RS 415,758
ACQUISIIONS. .....cvvvrevrevsrerstssessennas 408,654
Exchange differences ..... . {2,265)
At 1 January 2008.................. 820,147
Movements in current year ..... (5.853)
Exchange differences............. (17,662)
Accumulated impairment losses
AL T JANUANY 2007 ...ooovoiriiinricemss oo caresens ssesss s sesseos st serat et e a8 s a8 08585 be R e b s e —
AL TJANUARY 200B........coooroee ettt s s st st et s ar s s Er s Ere e bR b e et e —_
AL 3T DBCEMBET 2008 ........coeoveeviereese et serees e easeemers e st sasressseas es e aes 84812521 58211 81k e e e s e —
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2008 796,632

At 31 December 2007 820,147

The movements in the current year relate to adjustments to the goodwill of the company's prior year acquisitions, ZANTAZ Inc. and
Meridio Holdings Limited.

The group tests annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired. The group has one
reportable business segment and all goodwill is associated with thal segment. The recoverable amounts of the CGU is determined fram
value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and
expected changes to selling prices and direct costs during the period. A discount rate of 10% has been used which is consistent with the
rate used for determining the value of purchased intangibles. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based on recent history and
expectations of future changes in the market,

The group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budget approved by management and exirapclates
cashflows for the coming ten years based on estimated growth rates. For the purposes of this calculation management have used a
revenue growth rate of 18% for year 1, 15% for years 2 1o 5 and then 5% thereafter. Fixed expenses have been assumed to grow at 1%
for year 1 and then 5% thereafter. Variable expenses (directly linked to sales) have been assumed to remain a constant percentage of
sales throughout the forecast period. The rates used above reflect historical rates achieved and expected levels for 2009 but then are
prudently adjusted for subsequent years. Having performed impairment testing, no impairment has been identified, and therefore no
impairment loss has been recognised in either year.

The group has prepared a sensitivity showing zero growth (hroughout the ten year period and increasing the discount rate to 20%. Even at
this level no impairment is required to be recorded.
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12, Other intangible assets

Internally
Scftware Patents and generated Purchased
licenses cother intangibles software intangibles Total
$'000 $'000 $°000 $7000 $'000
Cost
At 1 danuany 2007 ... 12,869 827 3,368 47737 64,802
Reclassifications ....... (3.673) 623 - 4,296 —
Exchange differences ......oemmnron 170 4 14 (197} 9
Additions - internally generated.......c.co.conceree — — 6,942 — 6,942
Acquired 0N aCqUISTHON........cevrververereaarenreeneene — — - 77672 77672
At 1 January 2008........covriiinnnennnnn 9,366 208 10,325 129,508 149,407
Exchange differences ............... (1.271) {57) (1.402) (3,395) (6,125}
Additions — intenally generated - - 11,159 — 11,159
At 31 December 2008...........c....... 8,095 151 20,082 126,113 154 441
Amortisation
At 1 January 2007 ..o 11,041 685 432 7812 19,870
Reclassifications ....... e s ene (2,493) (481 — 2,974 —
Exchange differences ... T 138 4 23 3 168
Charge for the year ....... 632 — 1,726 12,955 15,313
At 1 January 2008......... 9318 208 2,181 23744 35451
Exchange differences ..o (1,490) {57) (183) (2,287) (4,017)
Charge for the year........ccoovvvoniinccrcncn 244 - 4,580 19,489 24,313
At 31 December 2008 ........c.cconvcevmerermierrircrnrens 8072 151 6,578 40,946 55,747
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2008.......c..cooverevrimrerienecns 23 — 13,504 85,167 98,694
At 31 December 2007 ... vvmnrerinsrennens 48 — 8,144 105,764 113,956
13. Property, plant and equipment
Leasehald Fixtures and Computer
improvements fittings equipment Total
$'000 $°000 $°000 $000
Cost
AU 1JANUAPY 2007 ..o e e 2,907 1,979 10,754 15,642
Additions ............... . 348 374 10,607 11,329
DiSpOSaS.......oovisirnirenns — — {2,553) {2,553)
Acquisition of subsidiaries.. 6,023 832 13,738 20,593
Exchange differences ........ 71 112 278 461
At 1 January 2008......... 9,349 3,299 32,824 45472
Additions .. 2,769 1,336 10,180 14,285
Disposals.........c.coomeree (822) (211} (7,462) {8,495)
Exchange differences ... (899) {295) (2,388) (3,582)
At 31 December 2008............cooveriererieeeenes et ese e 10,397 4,125 33,154 47,680
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1.JanUaRY 2007 ......ccooereicnreeeresercs s cmre e e essesassreese s 1,036 1,415 6.965 9416
Charge for the year ... 1,048 530 7,060 8,698
Disposals..........coumne. - — {1.873) (1,873)
Exchange differences " 122 310 443
At 1 January 2008......... 2,085 2127 12,462 16,684
Charge for the year... 1.721 674 11,700 14,095
Disposals.......vuws (822} (211) {7,109} (8,142
Exchange differences ... {13) {640) {1,654) {2,307)
At 31 December 2008 ..o et ene s s snes s 2,961 1,950 15,399 20,330
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2008............coonvcrnrmninnmimnerseis e 7416 2179 17,755 27,350
At 31 December 2007 ... rcereeenies et s e see e ees 7,254 1172 20,362 28,788

At 31 December 2008, the group had no contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment (2007: $nil).
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14.  Equity and other investments

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
ASSOCTBIES . 111t vuu s erceseeres e recs e ses s emses etk 488 b SR8 s R e SRR R RS 1,819 3,909
CHNEE IMVESIMIENES ..ottt et st et se e et ets et bbb s e et st ennes st bt sem st steebnne s 5,622 16,101
7,441 20,010
al  Investments in associales
2008 2007
$'000 $'000
Al beginning of year........ 3,909 2,160
Exchange maovements ..., (2183 272
AGIHIONS ..o s 2,289 3,150
Share: of 1655 of 85SOCIAE fOT YEAL.........ccoveerr e e e em ettt et e eats s s (2,196} {1,673)
AL BN OF PBAT. ...ttt e et st sttt e 1,819 3,909
The aggregated amounts in relation to the associate undertaking are shown below:
2008 2007
$'000 $000
TOAl BSSBES......ooeeeere etttk st et s s st e e e s s bR st et b 11,736 5,744
Total liabilities (10,116} (2.411)
Revenues............ 14,936 2,990
LD, .. vvvee e ves st ras e e st RS R85 1 801 e R8s raib e {5,490} (4,183)
b Other invesiments
2008 2007
$'000 $000
Available for sale investments carried at fair value
QUOIBA SIAIES ...v ettt e bbb s bbb bE b ed b b be b0 b st b ra bbb b bbb 5,272 15,656
Financial asset held at fair value threugh profit and loss
UNQUOLEA SNAIES........veci e st st bbb bbb s s s s et b e bt sbas st abe et st 350 445
Total equity and other INVESIMENIS ... s b st esb e b s ssrasb e 5622 16,101

In May 2007 the group demerged its consumer business which was successfully floated on AIM as blinkx Plc. The group retained a 10%
interest in blinkx Plc which is carried at fair value. This investment was originally recorded at cost and is valued at the year end based on
the market price a 31 December 2008 of £0.13 per share. Quoted investments are subject to market risk and can increase or decrease in
value depending on the share price of the relevant instruments. This investment has been classified as available for sale under I1AS 39,
and all changes in fair value have been recognised directly in equity during the period. No amounts have been removed from equity and

recognised in the income statement for the period.

The unquoted investments included above represent investments in privately owned companies. The fair values of these investments are
based on latest financial information available for each entity, The carrying value is considered in light of the net asset value and other
known factors which have an impact on the valuation of the respective entities. An impairment charge of $nil (2007: $1,026,000) was

incurred during the year.

15. Other financial assets

al  Trade and other receivables

AMOUNES QUE FIOM CUSIOMEIS ..ot ermse st s st bt semee e s et s e
Allowance for doUbHUl QBBES ...ttt st

TradR FECRIVABIES, NBE ...ttt st e er e b s s s raab s i st st ben e bt see et
QMBI TECRIVADIBS .....veevecvreeseeeerseec ettt e b bbbt bet st eab s bamssm st s brea st sen s et e brmnnneaes
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15. Other financial assets (continued)
The average credit period for trade receivables is 84 (2007: 83) days.

The group has credit risk with respect to trade receivables due from its customers. Autonomy has over 17 000 customers spread across
diverse industries and geographical areas and hence the concentration of credit risk from trade receivables is limited due to the large and
broad customer base. A large proporion of the group’s customer base includes various governments and large blue-chip companies
which also limits the exposure to credit risk. The company has no material risk associated with new customers or resellers who the
company has no experience of trading with, Allowance is made for bad and doubtful debts based on management's assessment of the
risk taking into account the ageing profile, experience and circumstance. Interest charged when amounts from customers are past due is
not material. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable and, where appropriate, credit
guarantee insurance cover is purchased. The group doas not have any debtors with renegotiated terms.

Included in the group's trade receivables balance are debtors with a carrying amount of $47.9 million {2007: $34.3 million) which are past
due at the reporting date and not impaired. Of the amounts over 90 days past due a large proportion relates to balances for which the
group has not yet recognised the revenue and hence no significant exposure is present.

The remaining batance of $93.4 million (2007: $76.2 million) is nat yet due. Of this balance $8.5m {2007 $nil) is due after one year. The
group’s allowance for doubtiul debts increased to $12.3 million (2007; $5.5 million). The charge for the year, net of amount utilized, was
$6.8 million {2007 credit of $0.2 million).

Trade receivables that are pasi due are provided for based on estimated irrecoverable amounts determined by reference to past default
experience and any other relevant circumstances. In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable the group considers any change
in the credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. The concentration of credit
risk is limited due to the customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly, the directors believe that there is no further credit
provision required in excess of the allowance for doubtful debts. No individual debt accounts for more than 10% of this balance in either
year. Other receivables includes a balance of $6.0m (2007: $nil} which is due after more than one year.

b)  Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the group and sheri-lerm bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

¢/ Creditrisk

The group’s principal financial assets are bank batances and cash, trade and other receivables.

The group's credit risk is primarily altributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the balance sheet are net of allowances
for doubtful receivables, estimated by the group's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic
environment. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Other than as noted in &) above, the group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers.

16. Deferred tax asset

Stock option

Tax losses losses Total

$'000 $'000 $'000
A1 JANUENY 2007 ..o sre s ssssss s ssseesssnesss e seasessiese - 7,155 7,155
Impact of acquisition of SUBSIdIANY........ccereiririsr e - 1,446 1,446
Recognition Of X J0SSES .......c.vvvceeerrcerrrers i emsesneneenss e s e ssanesesees 234 — 24
Transfers from current tax creditor.. - {12,431} {12,431)
Credited to equity......c.ccocvevevreecennnne — 12431 12,431
Foreign exchange MOVEMENE .........couvvreermearimimmissrsssrnsssesssarsssanssssassssins -— 27 27
AE1Januany 2008.......cooco ot 234 3628 8,662
Charged to income statement..... — {11,900} {11,900)
Credited to equity ......co..cccoinreneee - 18,047 18,047
Foreign exchange movement ..... " — (1,542) {1,542)
At 31 December 2008 ...ttt 234 13,213 13,467

43 Autonomy Corporation plc




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

16. Deferred tax asset (continued)

Al the balance sheet date, the group has an unrecognised deferred tax asset in respect of unused tax losses of $97.0 million (2007: $89.2
million) available for offset against fulure profits against which no deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. These losses expire at various dates from 2018 through 2027,

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in associates and joint ventures are immaterial.

17.  Other financial liabilities

2008 2007

$'000 $'000
TrAUR PAYADIES ......o.ieeeeeeemeee et et e e mm s s b s e era e be s smae s be 12,434 11,595
OINEE PBYDIES. ...vv.vvvresrerees s ses s b ss st b e Es e re s s b s s EE R R 19,511 29374
31,945 40,969

The average credit petiod for trade purchases for the group is 44 (2007: 50) days. The directors consider that the carrying amount of
trade and other payables approximates to their fair value. No interest has been charged by suppliers in respect of overdue amounts in
either year.

18. Bank loans

2008 2007
$000 $'000
BANKJOANS ... ev sttt ses st st S e e e R 37,231 47,869
The borrowings are repayable as follows:
On demand OF WIthil BNE VAN ... v e treceese st ettt et sosert st e n e 10,637 10,638
[N tHE SBOOMT YBAN ...t vemes e e s sres e e s s e R R aE bbbt 10,638 10,638
In the third to fifth YEArs INCIESIVE. ...veuer e et bbb bt ees e e sbes 15,956 26,593
37,231 47 889
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 months {shown under current liaBilities)............ccooovvvierrrrenn. {10,637) {10,638}
Amount due for settlement after 12 MONTAS.......cecir o s s sress et 26,594 37,231

The loan is denominated in U.S. dollars and carries a floating interest rate of LIBOR plus 0.5%, thus exposing the group to potential cash
flow interest rate risk. The directors estimate the fair value of the loan to be the same as the amounts shown above.

The loan is subject to certain financial and other covenants which have all been met during the year, The loan is covered by a guarantes
from Autonomy Corporation plc but is not secured against any assets of the group.

19. Provisions

Restructuring  Onerous lease Litigation

provision provision provision Total

$'000 $°000 $'000 $°000
A1 JanUary 2007 ... e 660 2,786 750 4,196
Exchange MOVEMENES ... s (9) 23 — 14
Additional provision in the period ..............cccoeveiveeveeee e 182 480 — 662
Utilized in period .....c....ccoeereroreenns . {731) {2,035) (750) (3,516)
Al 1 January 2008........... 102 1,254 - 1,356
Exchange movements .... — (102) - (102)
Utilized in period ............. . {102) {726) — {828)
Al 31 December 2008 .........co.oovmrereicr e e - 426 — 426

2008 2007

$°000 $°000
Included in current HabiltES. ... vceerermrrssrrsmssssrsmsmsssnsessens 426 1,089
Included in non-cutrent liabilities........c.ocovvevivieeeccinicnesiecinions — 257
426 1,356

The restructuring provision in 2007 relates to costs in connection with a reduction in force programme following the acquisitions in the
year. The remaining amounts were paid during 2008 and the provision fully utilized in that period.
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19. Provisions (continued)

The onerous lease provision relates to a number of properties within the group and the provision represents management’s best estimate
of the liability. Tenants are still being sought on the properties and hence the onerous lease obligations remain. This is expected to be

fuly utilized during 2009,

20. Deferred tax liability

2007

$:000 ‘

2007

$'000

2008
$'000
Tax on purchased intangibles
At 1 January 2008.......ccooe e —
Charged to Income Statement.................... 2,537
At 31 December 2008...........ccoovveveeeeeeecrrenens 2,537
21, Share capital
2008
$000
Authorized:
600,000,000 ordinary shares of 13D BACH ... et 3,300

3,300

Issued and fully paid:
215,817,197 ordinary shares of 1/3p 88CH ... s eeeiese 1,214

1,196

{2007 — 213,066,320 ordinary shares of 1/3p each)

The company has one class of ordinary shares which carry ne right to fixed income. The movement in issued share capital during 2008
consists solely of the issuance of 2,750,877 shares in relation to employee stock option exercises, and in 2007 consists of the issuance of
21,037,157 shares in relation to financings and acquisitions and 4,192,959 shares in relation to employee stock option exercises.

22. Own shares

QOwn shares
$°000
Balance at 1 January 2007 ........ceeviens 1,017
Disposed of on exercise of options (36)
Balance at 31 December 2007 ........... 981 ;
Disposed of on exercise of options (76) !
Balance at 31 DE0EMBEr 2008 ..ottt sttt s e a2 0 St st et b A b b 205

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares the company purchased in the market and are held by the Autonomy Corporation
plc Employee Benefit Trust to satisfy options under the group’s UK share options scheme (see note 25). Al 31 December 2008 the Trust

held 447,594 shares (2007: 484,844).
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23. Notes to the cash flow statement

2008 2007
$'000 $'000
PrOfit fTOM OPETAHONS.....cvvuurmraseiesieririsiasrss s rssras s ss s csr s en st st e rassat s sonsb b s s st 186,493 88,649
Adjustments for:
L0ss on disposal of fIXE ASSEIS ....vvinvvi i s 353 202
Impairment of investments... - . - 1,026
Depreciation of property, p1anl and equ1pment .......... 14,095 8,698
Amortisation of INtANGIDIE ESSELS ... st sttt et st 24,313 15313
Share based compensaticn ............. . 5484 3,786
FOreign CUMBNCY MOVEIMENS .......o.veersirscereers e sonss e ssesessersss i ss s st s s m s ses s st s st sessseesssessesses (5.141) €01
Operating cash flows before movements in workmg capltal 225,597 118,275
(Increase) decrease in inventories. . - (154} 368
Increase in receivables ... . (54,870} (23.247)
Increase (decrease} if PAYADIBS ..... ...ttt st et 8,210 (12,288)
Cash generated DY OPEIAHIONS............cooviur et sees s s st st ss s st s raa s 178,783 83,108
Income taxes paid . {32,447} (649
Net cash from Operating ACHVIEIES........c..cooo.evoecie ettt bbb s s bssnte e en 146,336 82,459

Cash and cash equivalents {which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance sheet) comprise cash at bank and

other short-term highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or {ess.

24, Operating lease arrangements

2008 2007
$'000 $000
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised in the income statement for the year....... 12,192 9,669

At 31 December the group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

fafling due as follows:

2008 2007

$'000 $'000
WIRIN ONE YBAN ...ttt e bbb bbb bbb s ste e 11,506 11,681
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 29,033 33,336
ABIEI FIVE YRAS (..e.evoe et et et ettt ea et e 8 s R S e e e 7,015 13,229
47,554 58,246

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the group for cerain of its office properfies. Leases are negotiated for an average

term of seven years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years.

25, Share based payments
a)  Share based compensation

Share based compensation charges have been charged in the income statement within the following functionat areas:

2008 2007

$000 $'000
Research and development 1,654 1,248
Sales and marketing ............... 2,739 2,044
General and adminNISIrAtIVE ... e e 1,091 494
5484 3,786

b} Equity-setiled share option plans

The group has two unapproved option plans providing employees and execulives with the opportunity to acquire a proprietary interest in
the company as an incentive fo attract and retain the services of employees. The two plans are the UK Discretionary Option Scheme
1996 (the “UK Scheme") and the 2008 US Share Option Plan (the “US Plan"). Under the terms of these plans, options are granted with
exercise prices not less than the fair market value of the company's shares, become exercisable aver vesting periods as established by
the Board of Directors (generally three to four years), and generally expire seven years from the date of grant. Vested options are

exercisable following termination of employment for periods ranging from zero to 90 days.
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25. Share based payments (continued)

The following tables summarize options outstanding as at 31 December;

2008 2007
Weighted Weighted
average exercise average exercise
Number price (E) Number price {E)

Qutstanding at beginning of pariod............cnecrimrnmnsriiienons 8,947,215 449 12,357,097 3.92

Granted during the period..... 2,123,243 9.26 2,255,624 7.80
Acquired upon acquisition of ZANTAZ - - 697,247 405
Exercised during the period..........ccvvervnienimamsenes (2,742,324) 333 (4,167,933} 312
Expired during the period............ (762,410) 6.34 (2.194,820) 14.58
Qutstanding at the end of the perlod - 7,565,724 6.2 8,947,215 449
Exercisable at the end of the period ......c...irivieeeen 3965744 455 4,472,825 321

The weighted average share price, at the date of exercise, for share options exercised during the period was £9.79. The options
outstanding at 31 December 2008 had a weighted average exercise price of £6.21 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of
5.01 years.

At the date of each grant, the fair market value of the options granted during the year were as follows:

Fair value of

Shares option
Date Number £
T4 JANUENY 2008 .......ocrvvirieeeeiriern st ssess e sease s st s s sms s s bbb s bt 5,000 3.06
11 FEDIUANY 2D0B..... ...t ettt et s s seent s st st st 5,000 300
3 March 2008........ R AR RS RS RR b1 s RS R s At 491,323 2.88
TMEICR 2008 .....iver ettt s et et 210,000 272
16 May 2008 ...t 295,000 274
24 June 2008.... 175,000 2n
1 July 2008........ 10,000 2.88
22 July 2008...... 2,500 341
8 August 2008............ et Rh e e LR AL RSP S A RE SRR SRR SRS A b e RSt eeb 501,500 318
2 September 2008 ..... e T4 1T b et re e 41 Sk eembent et st st reanbeertenem et ene e rea et e st e neneeras 2,000 321
TINOVEMBET 2008 ..o ettt s s sses et rmasr s s s e e bbb e s 425,920 271

2,123,243

b} Equity-setiled share option plans
The assumptions for the Black-Scholes model are as follows:

2008 2007
Weighted average Shars DGR ... et e rarsssses s st ettt nenes £9.26 £7.80
Weighted average BXEITISE PICE. .....ccv. e imierssimirass s ssisesssssss eesrsarssssssssss s s ssss st sesrsses st ssssssssssars £9.26 £7.80
Expected volafility.......c.ccoouurnes 40% 40%
EXPEOIRA I8, v revvre et ettt e e e s s e sttt et Jyears 3 years
RUSK-TBE FAIB. ..o st et ettt e b e s st et L BB b e ROt s 3.5% 3.5%
EXPECIEA AIVITENAS .....co.cevvvi et ireat s st s bt ebs st st st st bbb enb et e b s s — —

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the historical volatility of the group's share price over the previous three years. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based an management's best estimate, for the effects of nen-transferability, exercise
restrictions and behavioural considerations.

26, Related party transactions

Transactions between the company and its subsidiaries which are related parties have bzen efiminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note. Transactions between the group and its joint venture associate are disclosed below. There were no transactions
between the group and its associate other than the initial investment in the share capital of the associate. Transactions between the
company and its subsidiaries and associates are disclosed in the company's separate financial statements.

a}  Trading transactions with associate

There have been no transactions during 2008 and there are no balances due to or fram the associate at 31 December 2008 {2007: $nil),
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26. Related party transactions (continued)
B Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the group, is set out below in aggregate for each of the
categories specified in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures. Further information about the remuneration of individual directors is provided in
the audited partion of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 18, 19 and 20.

2008 2007
$°000 $'000
Share-DASEA PAYMENL.......cvvirirerrsiernsieiessis st iss et arstsrssss s s seeeasssssssssssns st smssssessons s s sessssesesnsns 725 287

21. Financial Instruments

a)  Capital risk management

The group manages its capital {o ensure that entifies in the group will be able to continue as going concerns while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 18, cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued
capital, reserves and refained earnings as disclosed in note 21 and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on page 28.

The group aims to maintain cash balances over $100 million to provide both security to customers making a significant long term
invesiment when they acquire our seftware and to provide funds for potential acquisitions should the epportunity arise.

b} Externafly imposed capital requirement

The group is not subject to extemally imposed capital requirements.

¢} Significant accounting poficies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methads adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurament and the
basis on which income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument
are disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements.

d)  Derivative contracts

The group does not enter into any financial derivative contracts,

e}  Classes of financial instruments

For the purposes of risk management, the group has identified the following classes of financial assets and liabilities:

Carrying Value
2008 2007

Note $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and €ash eqUIVEIENIS ..o e et eerns 199,218 92,571
Amounts due from customers 153,553 115,964
INVESIMENES 1N SNATES ......coo. vttt sne et et s s abe st parra bbb amtat bt e benas 5622 16,101
Financial liabilities
Bank 108n at BMOMSEA COBL..........coovererece et st bbbt s et 18 (37,231) (47.869)
Trade payables 17 (12,434) {11,595)

There is no difference between the carrying value and fair value of the above financial assets and liabifities in either year.

f)  Financial risk management objectives

The group is subject to market risk {including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash
flow interest rate risk.

The group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge foreign currency exposures as the operating companies within the group
principally generate revenues in the currencies in which they incur the majority of their expenditure. The group manages credit risk in
respect of its trade receivables as set out in note 15. Liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate risk are limited as the group has no net debt.
The Board review the respective risks on a quarterly basis to ensure no significant exposures exist.
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27. Financial Instruments (continued)
g Market risk

The group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The group
does not use derivatives 10 manage the forgign currency risks due to the natural hedging that exists within the group. Interest rate risk is
not considered significant as the cash balances exceed the bank loan balance.

Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis. There has been no change to the group's exposure to market risks or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risk.

h) Foreign currency risk management

The group underiakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies. Hence, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise both
in terms of transactional risk as well as translational risk. The group is naturally hedged, as noted above, which addresses the
transactional risk. Translational risk is minimal and is not hedged by the group as the majority of the group's assets and liabilities are
denominated in dollars which is also the group’s presentational currency. The carrying amounts of the group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

Liabilities Assels
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $000 $'000 $°000
(852) {865) 37,707 23,279
(43,944) (55,758) 266,484 122,290
(4,832) {2,788) 47,033 69,940
(37} {53} 4,801 9,127

i) Foreign currency sensitivily analysis

The group is mainly exposed to movemenis in pound sterling, US dollar and Euro,

The following fable details the group's sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the functional currency of the enlity concerned
against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensilivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their transtation at the period end for a 10%
change in foreign currency rates. The sensilivity analysis includes external loans as well as loans 1o foreign operations within the group
where the denomination of the loan is in a currency other than the currency of the lender or the borrawer. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit and other equity where the Sterling strengthens 10% against the relevant currency. For a 10% weakening
of the functional currency against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and other equity, and
the bafances below would be negative.

Euro currency impact US dollar currency impact
2008 2007 2008 2007
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
PIOF OF 1055 ...cccoevce e recrcs s v s s encecesssnorsasmssssssnsons
- cash and €ash eqUIVEIENES ..o 1,025 265 130 720
- amounts due from CUSIOMETS -.....coovriicvesis e cneeas 2,151 1,526 390 373
-trade payables ................. - 60 27 127 206
Other equity............

- intercompany loans...........cc.ovvnerinnnns — — - -

The movements above arse where entities within the group have financial assets or liabilities in currencies other than the respective
functional currencies. There has not been any significant change in the group's sensitivity to foreign currency during the year.

A Inlerest rate risk management

The group is exposed to interest rate risk as it has a floating interest rate bank loan and receives interest on its cash and cash equivalent
balances. The risk is managed by the group by maintaining sufficient cash balances to offset any exposure on the bank loan. The
group's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and financial liabiliies are detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this
note.

k}  Interest rale sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for both derivatives and non-derivative
instruments at the balance sheet date. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the ameunt of liability outstanding at
the balance sheet date was outsianding for the whole year. A 0.5% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.
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21. Financial Instruments {continued)
If interest rates had been 0.5% higherflower and all other variables were held constant, the group's:

= profit for the year ended 31 December 2008 would decreasefincrease by $0.2 million {2007 decreasefincrease by $0.2 million).
This is mainly attributable to the group’s exposure 1o interest rates on its variable rate berrowings; and
=  other equity reserves would be unaffected by the change in either year.

The group's sensitivity to interest rates has decreased during the current period as repayments of the bank loan have reduced the
outstanding balance.

§  Other price risks

The group is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments. The shares included above represent investments in listed
equity securilies that present the group with opportunity for return through dividend income and trading gains. Equity investments
designated as available for sale are held for strategic rather than trading purposes. The group does not actively trade these investments.

m}  Equity price sensilivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to equity price risks at the reporting date. If equity prices had
been 25% higherflower, other equity reserves would increasefdecrease by $1.3 million {2007 $3.9 million) for the group as a result of the
changes in fair value of available-for-sale shares.

The group’s investment in blinkx is a strategic long term investment following the demerger and is expected to be held for the foresesable
future. Due to the early stages of this entity it is fikely that there will be volatility in the share price and hence the valua of this investment
may vary significantly from period to period.

n}  Credit risk management

The group is principally exposed to credit risk over its trade receivables. Details regarding the management of this risk are provided in
note 15.

The group's investments in equity are in technology companies where management do not anticipate to receive dividends. No significant
credit risk has been identified in relation to these investments.

The company does not invest its funds in deposits with maturities exceeding one month and therefore there is no significant price risk on
cash and cash equivalents.

o)  Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements,
The group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by continuously
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
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21. Financial Instruments (continued)
p}  Liguidity and interest risk lablas

The following tables detail the group's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities, The tables have been drawn
up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earfiest date on which the group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Weighted
average interest Lessthan 3 Amonthsto 1
rate months year 1to 5 years 5+ years Total
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000 $°000

2008
Non interest bearing
- Trads payables................... - 12,434 -— - - 12,434
- Operating leases — 2877 8,629 29,033 7,015 47,554
Variable interest rate instruments
-BankIoan......co.oocoevvveennan, 4.40% 3,001 8,862 28,030 — 39,893

18,312 17,491 57,063 7.015 59,861
2007
Non interest bearing
- Trade payables - 11,595 - - - 11,595
- Operating leases................. — 2920 8,761 33,336 13,229 58,246
Variable interest rate instruments
-Bank loan ... 5.74% 3,366 9,869 41,482 - 54,717

17,881 18,630 74818 13,229 124,558
Q)  Fair value of financial instruments
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows
. The fair value of non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active

liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices. Financial assets in this category inciude the quoted
shares held in blinkx Plc.

. The fair value of unquoted shares is determined by management by considering the underlying profitability and net assets of
those investments.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amartised cost in the financial statements approximate their
fair valugs.

28. Subsidiartes

Alist of the significant investments in subsidiaries, including the name, country of incorporation and proportion of ownership interest is set
forth on page 59.

29. Post-Balance Sheet Events

On 22 January 2009 the company announced that it had entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Interwoven, Inc., a global leader in
content management software, for aggregate consideration of approximately $775 million (assuming exercise of all vested in-the-money
Interwoven share options), funded by an underwritten placing of ordinary shares, a new revelving credit facility from Barclays and a portion

of Interwoven and Autonomy's cash reserves. On the same date the company successfully completed the placing of 21,560,620 new
ordinary shares at a placing price of £10.33 per share, raising gross proceeds of £222,721,205,
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2008 2007
Note £'000 £'000
Non-current assets
INEARGIDIE BSSELS ... vrveverreerrrees et et e sess sttt s bR E e 2 — —
Invesiments in subsidiary undertakings..... 3 418,756 256,316
Investment in associate ............ 4 4107 2,925
Equity and other investments 5 3,660 7842
426,523 267,083
Current assets
Trade and other rECRIVADIES .........cver et e st st B 35,105 182,956
Cash and cash BQUIVAIENES ...........ccoorovs e eecssosese oo oo 3,183 16,569
38,288 199,545
TOMB) ASSBIS. ..ov.rveeereereemssttsneseosis s sesct e s s s bsse et ettt E bR RE R e 454,811 466,628
Current {iabilities
Trade and OINEr PAYADIES v...vv.evivoaree e ossssisn et e 7 {1.137) {3.151)
NEL CLITENE BSBEIS -....ovvervoers s reeses et sess st e re oo ses st ress s s 37,191 196,394
Non-current lishilities
OB PAYALIES .....1veo e criers sttt eses st e — (4,830}
DEFBITEH TAX AN -.ovvrvo oo oo e s ess st ssos oo B - (111}
— {4,949
Totd liabilities {1,137 {8,082)
Net assets........ Corats et bar LA shgt SoEerreTe sER A eE AR SR TR peA R L SRS b Cr s e senn 463,574 458,536
Shareholders’ equity
SRAME CAOILAL .........oooveireasseair oo ear s bbb ee s ee e sna e b e 720 M1
Share premium account.... 436,491 427332
Capital redemption resenve........c....ccoomvvveee. 70 70
METGET TBSBIVE. ... oo oerveoersse st ees e sesesasse s e s s e sms e sse s saa e e ssssese st 13,207 13,207
Revaluation reserve .. 985 5,186
Own shares............... . (579) (622)
RELAINET BAMINGS ..vv.oeveerrevrereeere e b s st esssss st 12,776 12,852
Totat equity......... oo 463,674 458,536

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 27 February 2009. They were signed on its
behalf by

Dr, Michael R, Lyn
Chief Executive Officer and Co-Founder
27 February 2009
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Capital
redemption
Share capital Share capital Share premium reserve Sub-total

(number) £000 £°000 £'000 £°000
A1 January 2007 ..., 187,836,204 627 274328 70 275,025
Retained loss ......... - — - - -
EBT movement.......ocoviivommvmrnninarnessesrenens — — - - -
Revaluation of equity investment..............c.n. - — - - —
Shares options exercised............ 4,192,959 14 11,620 — 11,634
Sharas SSUEY ....o..vvvoresarsramsemrs s ssnsens 21,037,157 70 141,384 - 141,454
At 31 December 2007 ... 213,066,320 71 427,332 70 428,113
Retained profit..........ccccoooveeeeivieeeeccee e - - —_ — -
EBT MOVement......ccoviemrnrierosininsresesireenes - — - - —_
Revaluation of equity investment..................... — — - — —
Shares OptioNS eXSICISEM.............c.uvuvermssersereeens 2,750,877 9 9,159 — 9,168
AL 31 December 2007 ..o eroerrrseresss 210,817,187 720 436,491 70 437,281

Sub-total Revaluation Retained

forwarded Merger reserve reserve Own shares camings Total

£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 1 January 2007 ..........co..... 275,025 - — (546) 14,599 288,978
Retained loss ........ - - - - {1,947) (1,947}
EBT movemnent — - — 24 — 24
Revaluation of eq. investm't... - - 5,186 - — 5186
Shares options exercised....... 11,634 — - - — 11,634
Shares issued ..., 141,454 13,207 - - - 154,661
At 31 December 2007 ............ 428,113 13,207 5.186 (622) 12,652 458,536
Retained profit........cccoveeenn.. - —_ - - 124 124
EBT movement — — - 47 — 47
Revaluation of eg. investm't... - — {4,201) - — (4,201)
Shares options exercised....... 9,168 — — — — 9,168
Al 31 December 2008 ............ 437,281 13,207 985 (575) 12,776 463,674
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2008 2007
£'000 £000
Net cash from Operating BCHVIHIES ..........vvceurereer e reeetere e sesas e s seams st e b tsseanesoe (35.286) {352)
Investing activities
INEETESE FBEEIVET. ... ..eovvr e icrirerers sttt o e e st st st i e 752 655
Investment in associates and JOINL VENIUTE ... v saress b sees (1,183) {745)
PUrChases Of INVESIMBNS .........covuieeecereii et erse st e erets s et e es st ersanees {19) (1.778)
INVESTTIENE I SUBSIAIBIES .. ....evooe oo e e erese s e rees e st oo st sn st (2.636) {11.060)
Net Cash USEd i INVESHNG ACHVIIES ......v..coessocessssressrssnrmssmsssrsmsssssssmsssmsss s ssnes s sotssasssssoesensss {3.086) (12.928)
Financing activities
ACQUISIION OF SUBSIIAIIES .......cceo oottt sst s s srms st s st — {181,100)
Proceeds frOm ISSUANCE OF SNAIES ..........ccovevrererscosssassissessessesssesssosrssersssssnssssensssnssess s sssmmnsernseos 24,966 173,089
Net cash from {used in} financing activities ...._........ e 24,966 {8,011)
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents............ . (13,406) (21,291)
Cash and cash equivalents at DEGINING O YR ... .c...cvreusrere oo seosereese e sssssssissttsestessoss st snsses 16,589 37,880
Cash and cash equivalents at 8N Of YBAN. ........c e e s s s 3,183 16,589

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and shori-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount
of these assets approximates their fair value.

Note to the Cash Flow Staternent

2008 2007

£'000 £'000
LOSS fTOM OPETAIONS ........covevveeiereee e oo cee ettt st s rbe s ot sea s er e st st bt ams b b onetbes {590) {2.602)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital...........coeierierinni (590) (2,602}
(Decrease) increase in INterCoMPanY DAIANCES ...........coovvvvcereomrenes et eseesss et s (34,739) 2,393
INCHEASE N FEEBIVEADIES ... oottt s st e et s b s s s s (93) (613)
Increase in payables e E e R RS R AR SA 14 RS LS bRt 136 459
Cash reduced BY OPEIatioNS .........coceeverererenee et on s sarss s sbssesse s s s sss s s s rs s s (35,286) (363)
TAX P ... eeersec e v s bbb R Rt st RSt it b rmesmernssr s e et — 1"
Net cash used in 0perating BCHVIIES .........ccouimriirir st b et sb bbb rsare e (35,286) {352)
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Notes to the Company Only Financial Statements

1. Significant accounting policies

As permitted by section 230 of the Companies Act 1985, the income statement of the company only is not presented as part of this annual
repor. As permitted by the Act, the separate financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards. The company has no employees other than the three non-executive directors (2007: three). Their remuneration is

shown in the group's remuneration report.

The financial statements of the company have been prepared on the historical cost basis. The principal accounting policies adopted are

the same as those set out in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements except as noted below.

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment.

These company financial statements are presented in sterling as that is the currency of the primary ecanemic envirenment in which the

company operates.

2. Intangible assets

Software
licenses Patents Total
£000 £'000 £'000

Cost
At beginning and end of YEar ..o e s 3147 104 3.251
Amortisation
At beginning and end of YBaT ..ot 3,147 104 3,251
Carrying amount

At 31 December 2007 and 2008 ...ttt —_ —

3. Investments in subsidiary undertakings

The company has investments in the subsidiaries listed on page 59 which principally affected the profits or net assets of the group.

£'000

Cost
ALTJBNUBAIY 2008 ... ot eesresns bt s s bass s ecs s e sies b b s sa s e b 442 s aees e e e st mnbe s et 256,316
AUOIIONS .11 1vvcevvesemv e it v e e s et s 44t 42545484 8824442124504 s B8 s a4 bt eRe e e 410
COHNEE MOVEMEIS ...oovivviciiiinsieeiines st seeees e s s vesbesss st s e s e bbb e sbes s st ems st e s et sen s e s eee s e se s stees s st e s srnes (4.830)
Reclassification of intercompany balance 166,860
AL DECEMBET 2008 ........oor oo et iecrrrimre e rsrrsus e st srab et v s a1 R R s RS S e RS 418,756
4. Investment in associate
During the year the company invested an additional £1.2 million as part of its Chinese associate operations.
5. Equity and other investments

2008 2007

£'000 £'000
Fair value through profit @nd 088, i e sttt s e s 3,660 7,642

The investment above represents the company's 10% interest in blinkx Pl following the demerger in May 2007. See note 14b of the

group acoounts for additional information,
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Notes to the Company Only Financial Statements

6. Trade and other receivables

2008 2007

£000 £'000
Amounts owed by sub3|d|ary undenaklngs ............................................................................................... 34,088 181,959
Other receivables... AR £ AR 48 SRR R8RSR AR AR R 1,017 997
35,105 182,956

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings
At the balance sheet date amounts receivable from the fellow Group companies were $34.4 million {2007: $182.0 miilion). The carrying
amount of these assets approximates their fair value. There are no past due or impaired receivable balances (2007: nil).

1. Trade and other payables

2008 2007

£000 £'000
TrAE PAYADIES .......ooeeo oot S s 664 638
Deferred consideration. — 2,226
Other payables......... 398 287
T X ADIHES ... voevscerorersasesersrrrs s errereantss s ssssassanirssss s sssns s st srsmsss s sbse s ensassnssssassarasveesseansasssm srenecssensen 75 —
1,137 3,151

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates to their fair value.

8. Deferred tax liability

AT JBNUATY 200B-...........oconeemereesiseseenecsssaseceessasseees s rsstreseasssoseess2ee= e 2mt 1250 08 110 15584 578 R RR RS0 1R 00
Released in current tax ...,

AL 3T DECEMBEN 2008 .....oeooier st it 0 bbb 488443028 448828 58 e e

The company did not have any tax losses in either year. The deferred tax Fiability related to accelerated capital allowances.

9. Related party transactions
During the year the company had no license fee related expenditures (2007; £nil).

All transactions are conducted on an arm’s length basis and the amount owed by subsidiary undertakings is disclosed in note 7,

10. Financial Instruments

The policies of the group are discussed in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements. The tables below provide the financial
instruments disclosures for the company.

a)  Classes of financial instruments

For the purposes of risk management, the company has identified the following classes of financial assets and liabilities:

Carrying Value
2008 2007

Note £'000 £'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash 8QUIVAIENIS ... e e s et ses s s asssasasssssssass e sven 3,183 16,589
Investments in shares ... EeerRY b a4 A1 e aes e s e a e sse e e et Sb st sb o8 E b 5 3,660 7,842
Amounts owed by subsndlary undertaklng 6 34,088 181,859
Financial liabilities
Trade PAYADIES ...ttt st et be b sttt O (664) {638)

There is no difference between the carrying value and fair value of the above financial assets and liabilities in either year.
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Notes to the Company Only Financial Statements

10. Financial Instruments (continued)
b} Foreign currency risk management

The carrying amounts of the company's foreign currency denominated monelfary assets and monetary liabililies at the reporting date are

as follows:
Liabilities Assels
2008 2007 2008 2007
£000 £000 £'000 £'009
US DOlAT ..ot seas s saes s s s reb s s et tanion (226} (388) 30 90

¢)  Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The Company is mainly exposed to movements in US dollar.

The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in the functional currency of the entity concerned
against the refevant foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personne! and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10%
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes external loans as well as loans fo foreign operations within the
Company where the denomination of the loan is in a currency other than the currency of the lender or the borrower. A positive number
below indicates an increase in profit and other equity where the Sterling strengthens 10% against the relevant currency. For a 10%
weakening of the functional currency against the relevant curcency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit and other
equity, and the balances below would be negative.

US dollar currency impact

2008 2007
£'000 £'000
PIOME O 1088 1.vrcvon e sttt ers s b v s s s s et bs e b st e b srab e st e
- gash and cash equivalents ........ccc.cco.n. 43 9
SRR PAYADIES ..ot e e e et sb e sas bt 17 K}

The movements above arise where the company has financial assets or liabilities in currencies other than Sterling. There has not been
any significant change in the company’s sensitivity to foreign currency during the year.

d)  Other price risks

The company is exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments, The shares included above represent investments in listed
equity securities that present the Company with opportunity for return through dividend income and trading gains. Equity investments
designated as available for sale are held for sirategic rather than trading purposes. The Company does not actively frade these
investments.

e} Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure 1o equity price risks at the reporting date. If equity prices had
been 25% higher/lower other equity reserves would increase/decrease by £0.9 million (2007: £2 million) for the Company as a resull of the
changes in fair value of avallable-for-sale shares.

The Company’s investment in blinkx is a strategic long term investment following the demerger and is expected 1o be held for the

foreseeable future. Due to the early stages of this entity it is likely that there will be volatility in the share price and hence the value of this
investment may vary significantly from period to period.
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Notes to the Company Only Financia! Statements

10. Financial Instruments {continued)
§} Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractua! maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required io
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

Lessthan 3 Imonths 101

months year 1to 5 years Totat
£000 £'000 £'000 £000

2008
Non interest bearing
-Trade payables ... e 664 - — 664
2007
Non inferest bearing
~ Trade payables ... e 638 — — 638

g)  Fairvalue of financial instrumenis

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows.
» The fair value of non-derivative financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices. Financial assets in this category include the quoted shares
held in blinkx Plc.

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements approximate their
fair values.
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Principal Group Companies

Company Country of operation Function
Autonomy Corporation pke England Holding company

Autonomy Systems Ltd England Software development and distribution
Autonomy Belgium BYBA Belgium Marketing and sales support
Autonomy France Sar France Marketing and sales support
Autonomy Netherlands BV Netherlands Marketing and sales support
Autonomy Systems Singapore Ple Ltd Singapore Marketing and sales support
Autonomy Germany GmBH Germany Marketing and sales supporl
Autonomy Italy Srl Italy Marketing and sales support
Autonomy Spain SL Spain Marketing and sales support
Autonomy Nordic AS Norway Sub licensing

Autonomy Sweden AB Sweden Marketing and sales support
Autonomy Services GmbH Germany Professional services

Autonomy, Inc. usa Software development and distribution
Autonomy Systems (Beijing) Limited Company China Marketing and sales support
Autonomy Systems Australia Pty Ltd. Australia Sales agent

Autonomy Systems Canada Ltd. Canada R&D services and maintenance services
Autonomy Japan KK Japan Sales agent

Virage, Inc. usa Software development and distribution
Etalk Corporation USA Software development and distribution
Verity, Inc. USA Software development and distribution
Verity Benelux BV Netherlands Sublicensing

Verity Deutschland GmbH Germany Sales agent

Verity France SARL France Sales agent

Verity Italy Srl Italy Sales agent

Verity Mexico S, De R.L. De C.V. Mexico Sales agent

Verity Luxembourg SARL Luxembourg Sales agent

Verity Hong Kong Ltd. Hong Kong Sales agent

ZANTAZ, Inc. USA Software development and distribution
ZANTAZ UK Limited Engtand Marketing and sales support

Meridio Holdings Limited Northern Ireland Software development and distribution

All of the above entities are 100% owned.
Joint Ventures and Associates:

Company

Country of operation

Functicn Holding

OpenV China Holdings Company

Cayman islands
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Shareholder Information and Advisors

Autonomy Shareholder Services

All administrative inquiries regarding shareholdings such as questions about lost share cerificates should be directed to the company's

regisirars as follows:

Computershare Investor Services PLC
PG Box 82, The Pavilions

Bridgwater Road
Bristol

BS99 7NH

UK

Tel: +44 870 702 0000

email: web.queries@computershare.co.uk

Stock Exchanges

Autonomy's ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange under the symbol “AU.". Autonomy does not maintain listings on

any other stock exchanges.

Shareholder Communications

Topics featured in this Annual Report can be found via the Autonomy home page on the Internet (http./fwww.autonomy.com). Financial
results, news on Autonomy products, services and other activities can also be found via that address. Autonomy's Investor Relations

Department can be reached on +44 1223 448 Q00 or at investor_relations@autonomy.com,

Advisors

Auditors Stockbrokers Stockbrokers

Deloitte LLP UBS Warburg Citigroup Global Markets Limited
City House 1/2 Finsbury Avenue Canada Square

126-130 Hills Road Londoen London

Cambridge EC2N 2PP E145LB

CB2 1RY

Investor Relations Registrars Registered Office
Finangial Dynamics Lid. Cormputershare Cambridge Business Park
Holborn Gate PO Bex 82, The Pavilions Cowley Road

26 Southampton Buildings Bridgwater Road Cambridge

Londoen Bristol CB4 0WZ

WC2A 1PB BS99 7NH

Autonomy Corporation plc
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Headquarters:

Autonomy Inc.

Qne Market, 19th Floor, Spear Tower,
San Francisco, CA 94105, USA

Tel: +1 415 243 9955

Fax; +1 415 243 9584

Emall: info@us.autonemy.com

Autonomy Systems Lid
Cambridge Business Park,

Cowley Rd, Cambridge, CB4 OWZ, UK
Tel: 444 t0) 1223 448 000

Fax: +44 (0) 1223 448 001

Email: autonomy@autonomy.com

Other Offices:

Autenomy has additional offices in Antwerp,
Barcelona, Beijing, Bogota, Boston, Buenos Aires,
Calgary, Cambridge, Chicago, Dallas, Darmstadt,
Kuala Lumpur, London, Madiid, Mexico City, Milan,
Munich, New York, Oslo, Ottawa, Paris, Pleasanton,
Rome, San Francisco, Santa Clara, Shanghai,
Singapere, Santiago, Sac Paulo, Steckholm, Sydney,
Tokyo, Utrecht and Washingten, D.C.

www.autonomy.com
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